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P.O. Box 307 LIVINGSTON, LA 70754 
PHONE: (225) 686-7278 
FAX: (225) 686-2004 

June 28, 2024 

To the Citizens of Livingston Parish 

Pursuant to Louisiana law, I hereby Issue the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the citizens of 
Livingston Parish for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Livingston Parish Assessor's Office (hereinafter 
"Assessor's Office") prepared this report in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(hereinafter "GAAP"). Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness 
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Assessor's Office. 

Hannis T Bourgeois, LLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, conducted an audit of the Assessor's 
Office financial statements, and have issued an unmodified (`clean") opinion on the Livingston Parish Sheriff s 
Office financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. The goal of the independent audit was 
to provide reasonable assurance the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The independent 
audit involved examining the evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first document of 
the financial section of this report. 

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (hereinafter "MD&N'). This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Assessor's 
Office MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 

Livingston Parish was formed in the year 1832 when the State Legislature split St. Helena Parish in two. 
Historians differ as to which one, but the parish was named after either Robert or Edward Livingston. In 1869, 
the parish lost territory when Tangipahoa Parish was created, but later gained additional land when Maurepas 
Island was made a part of the parish. 

The parish currently occupies a land area of 642 square miles on 410,880 acres and is 32 miles long by 30 miles 
wide. It serves an estimated population of 142,184 as of December 31, 2021, which represents an 11.1 % growth 
since the U.S. Census as of 2010 of 128,026. 

As your Assessor, Louisiana law obligates me to list and value all property in Livingston Parish subject to ad 
valorem taxation on an annual assessment roll. It is my duty to the citizens of Livingston Parish and the main 
goal of my office to ensure all property in Livingston Parish is assessed in a fair and equitable manner according 
to the Constitution of the State of Louisiana and the Revised Statutes passed by the Legislature. 

Long-term Financial Planning and Major Initiatives 

Long-term financial plans serve as a tool to identify issues and opportunities, and to provide the Assessor, staff, 
and citizens with the insights required to address issues impacting the Assessor's Office financial condition. 
The Assessor's plan typically includes a multi-year planning horizon - three to five years for projecting current 
operations and capital expenditures and extended time frames for more extensive projects depending on funding. 
Although issuance of bonds are typically a last resort, future additional projects may require additional revenue, 
either from current or new revenue sources, i.e., grants, bonded debt, etc. I do not foresee the office having any 
large projects or the need for additional revenue in the near future. 
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In fiscal year 2018, the Assessor's Office joined governmental entities across the United States in adopting 
GASB No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Post-Employment Benefits." Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) provided to the Assessor's retired employees include medical and life insurance. 
Under this new guidance, the Assessor's Office has reported the total OPEB liability in the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements. 

Since taking office, the Assessor has continued the agencys dedicated focus on maintaining the high level of 
service to the people living and working in Livingston Parish while making changes to improve the efficiency 
and effectiveness of the agency and build the community's trust. 

The Assessor strives to maintain an unrestricted fund balance to provide for unanticipated expenditures of a non-
recurring nature and/or to meet unexpected increases in costs. All fund designations and reserves are reviewed 
annually for long-term adequacy and use requirements. 

Budget Preparation 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Assessor's Office financial planning and control. The 
administration along with assistance from the accountant develops, prepares, and presents to the Assessor the 
proposed annual budget and budget message for the general fund in accordance with the Local Government 
Budget Act found in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 39:1301-1315. The Assessor is required to hold a public 
hearing on the proposed budget and adopt a final budget by no later than December 31, the close of the 
Assessor's fiscal year. Certified copies of the adopted budget, adoption instrument, budget amendments, 
supporting schedules, and correspondence related to the budgets are to be retained at the office and by the 
contracted accounting firm's office. Additional details on the budget process are explained in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

The administration and accountant monitor the budget with monthly financial statements and budget-to-actual 
comparisons for any corrective action needed. The Assessor is responsible for adopting amended budgets on a 
timely basis and in accordance the Local Government Budget Act. 

For the General Fund, the legal budgetary level of control is at the function level. 

Local Economy 

Although Livingston Parish is still among the fastest growing parishes in Louisiana and property values are on 
the rise, Livingston Parish still provides a reasonably affordable cost of living to its citizens. There is plenty of 
land available for development leaving, some opportunities for growth. The retail sector has been the most 
visible evidence of such growth due to major stores such as Bass Pro and Sam's Club. These stores have caused 
more businesses to emerge driving up the revenue circulation throughout the parish. The Juban Crossing retail 
development has flourished by bringing a multitude of stores and restaurants helping to bring even more job 
opportunities and daily conveniences to our doorstep. This retail area continues to bring new development and 
economic development. 

One of the major reasons Livingston Parish is one of the nation's fastest growing parishes (counties) is the 
lifestyle it offers. Despite the recent growth locally, our communities retain their personality and charm. 
Families value the public schools which rank among the best in the state along with the safe neighborhoods and 
extensive public park system that offers recreational youth sports opportunities. 

Over the last ten years, unemployment rates have continued to drop in Louisiana. The U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics reports 3.0 percent unemployment in Livingston Parish in December of 2023, compared to 7.3 percent 
in 2011, while the unemployment rate in the United States has dropped to 5.1 percent in December of 2023 from 
8.9 percent in 2011. This is a significant improvement especially since the unemployment rate had skyrocketed 
to a mere 14.8 percent nationally and 11.5 percent parish-wide in April of 2020. 
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Relevant Financial Policies 

The Livingston Parish Assessor's Office has established and adopted the following comprehensive financial 
policies to improve the Assessor's Office financial stability, to balance the needs of the organization with the 
resources available for use, and to assist the Assessor's Office with careful financial planning. The internal 
control structure of the Assessor's office is a working policy that is constantly monitoring the office for 
weaknesses or areas that can be strengthened. It is the intent of the controls to mitigate as much risk as possible. 
Our contracted accountant is utilized and internally we depend on our policies and systems to lessen potential 
problems and identify any as soon as possible. The policies set forth below are consistent guidelines for fiscal 
planning and performance and support the Assessor's Office commitment to sound financial management and 
financial stability. 

These policies can be found within the notes to the financial statements which follow the basic financial 
statements. 

y Submitted. 

Jeffrey 
K3y(r14—

 

Livingslon Asscssor 
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HONORABLE JEFFREY G. TAYLOR 
ASSESSOR 

8 



r Front Counter/Customer 

Relations; Transfer Dept.; 
Mapping & Permits 

L  

Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 

Assessor 

  

Chief Deputy, 

Residential & 

Commercial 

Operations 

 

Chief Office 

Administrator, 

Oversees All Office 

Operations 
       

Commercial Supervisor 

Oversees In-House & 

Field Work 

Residential Supervisor, 

]   Oversees Residential In 

-House & Field work 

Personal Property 

Specialist & LTC 

Field Commerciai 

Work & Appraisers 

Supervisor, and In-

House Appraiser 

Supervisor Assistant 

in-House Field 

Appraiser 

Residential Field 

Workers & 

Appraisers 

7 Human Resources 

Mileage Dept. 

Computer Specialist & Part 

time Employees 

9 



ivingston 
arish 

FINANCIAL SECTION 



 

HANNIS T. 
BOURGEOIS 
CPAs + BUSINESS ADVISORS 
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PROUDLY SERVING LOUISIANA SINCE 1924 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Jeffrey G. Taylor, CLA 
Livingston Parish Assessor 
Livingston, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, and each major fund 
information of the Livingston Parish Assessor, a component unit of the Livingston Parish Council Assessor, as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Assessor's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, and each major fund of the Livingston Parish Assessor, as of 
December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison 
for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are required to be independent of the Livingston Parish Assessor and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Livingston Parish Assessor's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Livingston Parish Assessor's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor's Revonsibilities fir the Audit of the Financial Statements 

C)ur objectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the tinancial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not ahsolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as tiaud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we• 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectneness of the Livingston Parish Assessor's internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pidicies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made hy management. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the LIN. ingston Parish Assessor's ahihty to contmue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, signiticant audit findings, and certain internal control—related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios on pages 13-18, and 
52, respectively, as well as the information presented in the Schedule of the Assessor's Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability on page 53 and the Schedule of the Livingston Parish Assessor's Contributions on 
page 54 be presented to supplement the hasic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of tinancial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic. or historical context. We hal, e applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary infbrmation in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management ahout the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the mtbrmation for consistency with management's response to our 
inquiries, the basic tinancial statements, and other knowledge we ohtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the mfbrniation because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

11 



Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions of the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Livingston Parish Assessor's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule listed as 
Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The accompanying schedules listed as Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the accompanying schedule listed as Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information Include in the Annual Report 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial report. The 
other information comprises the introductory section on pages 5 through 9 and the statistical section Tables 1 
through 14 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the 
basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28, 2024 on 
our consideration of the Livingston Parish Assessor's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the Livingston Parish Assessor's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Respectfully submitted, 

)-k apAro.„ LLP 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
June 28, 2024 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNA1TDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31. 2f/23 

Introduction 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for the Assessor, offers readers of the Assessor's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Assessor for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2023. This MD&A is designed to provide an objective and easy to read analysis of 
the Assessor's financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. 

The Assessor's discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in thcusing on significant financial 
issues. (b) provide an overview of the Livingston Parish Assessor's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the 
Assessor's financial position, (d) identify any signiticant variations from the Assessor's financial plan. and (e) 
identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes. and currently known facts. please read it in conjunction with the Assessor's financial 
statements, which thllow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

• At December 31, 2023. the Assessor's government wide liabilities and deferred intlows of resources 
exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of resources by $(670,388) (net position). The Assessor 
reported a deficient balance of $(1,699.560) in total unrestricted net position. The Assessor's net 
investment in capital assets of $1,029,172 increased hy $642,211. 

• Ad valorem taxes, the main source of revenue for the assessor's office totaled $5.626,799 on the fund 
basis for the current fiscal year, as compared to $5,313,750 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2022. 

• Total expenses on the government-wide basis for the fiscal year ending December 31. 2023 were 
$7,080,514 increasing by $1,1117,683 from $5,962.830 for the prior fiscal year 

• At December 31, 2023, the general fund reported ending fund balance of $8,223,306, an increase of 
$165,584 for the year. (af that amount $8,223,306 is unassigned fund balance. 

Overview of the Annual Financial Report 

The tinancial statement thcus is on both the Livingston Parish Assessor as a whole and on the major individual 
fimds. Both perspectives, government-wide and major funds, allow the user to address relevant ‘juestions, 
broaden a basis for comparison, and enhance the Assessor's accountability. The statements then proceed to 
provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities. 

The MD&A intended to serve as an introduction to the Assessor's basic fmancial statements, which consist of 
three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the 
financial ;tatements. This report also contains required supplementary information and other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAITDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31. 2f/23 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Livingston Pansh Assessor's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the Assessor's assets and liabilities using the acenial 
hasis of accounting, in a manner similar to the accounting used by private business enterprises. The difference 
hetween the assets and liabilities is reported as net position Over time, the increases or decreases in net position 
and changes in the components of net position may sell e as a useful indicator of whether the financial position 
of the Assessor is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Assessor's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year, focusing on both the goss and net costs of iarious actnities that are supported hy the 
Assessor's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the reader's analysis of 
the cost of various governmental services. 

In both of the government-wide financial statements, the Assessor's activities are a single type: 

Governmental activities - All of the Assessor's basic services are reported here and are financed primarily 
by ad valorem tax revenue. 

The government-wide financial statements include only the Livingston Parish Assessor (a component unit of the 
Livingston Parish Council) and can be found on pages 19 and 20. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Assessor, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related and legal requirements. The Assessor 
uses one category of funds to account for financial transactions: governmental funds. Traditional users of 
governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more familiar. 

Governmental funds are used to account for all of the Assessor's basic services. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on how money flows into 
and out of those funds and the balances that are left at year-end that are available for spending These funds are 
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. which rneasures cash and all other financial assets that 
can readily he converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the 
Assessor's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information 
helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can he spent in the near future to 
finance the Assessor's programs. The fund financial statements begin on page 21 of this report. 

Because the f0cus of governmental fimds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
there are differences in the information presented for government funds and for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. Review of these differences provides the reader of the financial 
statements insight on the long-term impact of the Assessor's more inunediate decisions on the current use of 
financial resources Both the governmental ft.ind Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of 
Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
hetween governmental funds and governniental activities. The reconciliations can be found on pages 22 and 24 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31, 2023 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
begin on page 26. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 
The following table provides a summary of the Assessor's net position for the current year as compared to the 
prior year. 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
2023 aud 2022 

 

Governmental Activities 
2023 2022 

Assets. 

  

Current and Other Assets 8,790.492 $ 8,546.269 
Capital Assets 1.029,172 386,961 

Total Assets 9.819,664 8,933,230 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

   

Pension Related 1.673.720 3,001,873 
Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligations 1.748.029 1,622,180 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3.421.749 4,624,053 

Liabilities: 

  

L.ong-Term Ohliptions 11.175,489 10,584,088 
Other Liahilities 137,673 86,388 

Total Liabilities 11.313,162 10,670.476 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

  

Pension Related 138.608 314,157 
Related to Other Post-Employment Benefits 2.360,03 2,936,319 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources .1.598,639 3,250,476 

Net Position: 

  

Investment in Capital Assets 1.029.172 386.961 
Unrestricted (1.699.56(1) (750.630) 

Total Net Position (670,388) $ (363,6(i9) 

"Current and Other Assets" increased $244,223 due to increases in cash and equivalents of $54,621 and 
receivables of $177,272. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAITDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31. 2023 

"Capital Assets" increased by $642,211, mainly due to the construction of a storage huilding at the Assessor's 
C)ftice premises partially offset by the depreciation expense recorded for the fiscal vear ending December 31, 
2023 of $63,158. 

"Liabilities" increased by $642,686 mainly due to the increase in other post-employment benefit obligations of 
$1220,004, decrease in net pension liability of $654,803 and increase in compensated absences payable of 
$26,200. Accounts payable and other liabilities increased hy $51.285. 

"Total Net Positioe (total assets and deferred outflows of resources less total liabilities and deferred intlows of 
resources) decreased hy $306,719 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. 

In order to further understand what makes up the changes in net position. the tahle following provides a 
summary of the results of the Assessor's activities for the current year as compared to the prior year 

Condensed Statement of Activities 
For the years euded Decemher 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

Governmental Activities 
"023 )01.-) 

Revenues: 

  

Progranl Revenues. 

  

Charees for Services 10,987 $ 10,933 
Operating Grants and Contributions 929,097 601,086 

General Revenues: 

  

Ad Valorem Taxes 5,626.799 5,313.750 
Revenue Sharing 95.85) 93.751 
Interest Income 71,691 9,768 
Other Intergovernmental Revenue 38,429 35,867 

Other Revenue 940 6,186 

Gain.(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 

 

70.941 

Total Revenues 6.773.795 6.142.282 

Expenses. 
General Government 7.080.514 5.962.830 

Total Expenses 7.0ti0.514 5.962.ti30 

Change in Net Position (306,719) 179.452 

Net Position, Beginning (3(i3.669) (543.121) 
Net Position, Ending (670.3M) S (363.6(i9) 

The Assessor's governmental net position decreased by $306.719 as compared to a prior fiscal year net position 
increase of $179.452. The Assessor's total revenue increased overall by $631,513, due to an increase in 
operating grants and contributions of $328,011 and an increase of ad valorem taxes of $313,049. Total expenses 
on the government-wide basis for the fiscal year ending Decemher 31. 2023, increased hy $1,117,683. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31. 2f/23 

Fund Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, the Assessor uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-rdated 
and leeal requirements. The Assessor has only one fund type — eovernmental funds. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Assessor's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Assessor's financing requirements. 
In particular, unassigned fimd balance may serve as a useful measure of the Assessor's net resources available 
for spending at the end of the year. 

At the end of the current year, the Assessor's one governmental fund, the general fund, reported ending fund 
balance of $8.223.306. The entire fund balance was unassiped and available for spending at the Assessor's 
discretion. 

Governtuental Fuud Budgetar Highlights 

The Assessor demonstrated legal compliance by adopting and amending its budget in accordance with 
provisions of the Local Government Budget Act. As required by state law, actual revenues and other sources 
were within 5% of budgeted revenues and other sources, and actual expenditures and other uses were within 5% 
of budgeted expenditures and other uses. 

Capital Assets 

At December 31. 2023, the Assessor's net investment in capital assets for its governmental activities amounts to 
S1,029,172. 

The fdlowing table provides a sununary of the Assessor's capital assets (net of depreciation) at the end of the 
current year as compared to the prior year. For more detailed information, see Note 7 to the financial statements 
in this report. 

('apital Assets (Net of I)epreciation) 
2023 and 2022 

 

Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets 2023 2022 

Buildings and hnprovements $ 339.888 

 

Equipment and Furniture 305.360 290,775 
Vehicles 130.775 80,778 
Computers 370.988 360.526 
Construction in Progress 4)1.9)5 132,488 
Suhtotal Capital Assets 1.569.936 86-1,567 
Less. Accumulated Depreciation (540,764) (477,606) 

Capital Assets, Net $ 1.029.172 S 386.961 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31, 2f/23 

Capital asset increases included $705,369 tor building and improvements, equipment and furniture, vehicles, 
and computers 

Other Factors Affecting the Assessor 

The Livingston Parish Assessor's management approach is conservative This is retlected in confonnance to 
enacted budgets and in the efforts of the Assessor to control the level of expenditures. 

Contacting the Assessor's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide Livingston Parish citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a 
general overview of the Assessor's finances and show the Assessor's accountabihtv for the money it receives. 
Questiom regarding this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Livingston 
Parish Assessor at Post Office Box 307: Livingston. Louisiana 70754. Phone (225) 686-7278. 
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Statement A 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS 0F DECEMBER 31, 2023 

GOV ernmen t al 
Activities 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,582,767 

Investments 211.478 

Receivables, Net• 4,894.987 

Prepaid Insurance and Service Contracts 101,260  

Total Current Assets 8,790,492  

Capital Assets: 

Land 

Constniction in Progress 422.925 

Capital Assets, Net 606.247  

Tutal Capital Assets 1,029.172  

Total Assets 9,819.664  

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension Related 1,673,720 

C)ther Post-Employment Benefits Obligation 1,748.029  

"Fotal Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,421.749  

1.iabilities 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 66.725 

Other Accnied Payables 70,948  

Total Current Liabilities 137.673  

Long Term Liabilities: 

C)ther Post-Employment Benefits Obligation 9,105.791 

Net Pension Liability 1,998.999 

Compensated Absences Payable 70,699  

Total Long Tenn Liabilities 11,175,489  

Total Liabilities 11.313.162  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension Related 238.608 

Related to Other Post-Employment Benetit. 2.360.03 I 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,598,639  

Net Position 

Investment in Capital Assets 1,029,172 

Unrestricted (1,(i99.560) 

Total Net Position (670,38S1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Program Reveuues  

Statement B 

Net (Expenses) 
Revenues and 

Changes in Net 
Position 

Charges Opera tin g Net 
for Grants and (Expenses) Governmental 

Ex enses Services Contributions Rev en ues Activities 
Governmental Activities 

    

General Government $ 7,080,514 S 10.98 7  S 9/9.097 S ( 6.140,430) $ (6.140.430) 

Total Governmental Activities $ 7.080,514 10,987 929,097 $ (6,140,4301 (6,140,430) 

General Revenues: 

    

Ad Valorem Tax 

   

5,626,799 
Revenue Sharing 

   

95,852 

Interest Income 

   

71.691 
Other Intergovernmental Revenue 

   

38.429 
Other Re% enue 

   

940 

Total General Revenues 

   

5,833,711 

Change in Net Position 

   

(306,719) 

Net Position - Beginning 

   

(3(3.669) 

Net Position - Ending 

   

(670,388) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement C: 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

General 
Fund 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash anti Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables, Net: 

Ad Valorem Tax 

Due From Other Governments 

Other Recenables 

1,58'.767 

211.478 

4,S53,16-) 

40,063 

1,762 

Total Assets ti S,689,232 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 

Current Liabilities. 

Accounts Pavahle 66,725 

Other Accrued Payables 70,948 

Total Liabilities 137,673 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

Ad Valorem Taxes 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

328,253 
318,753 

Fund Balances: 

Unassiped 

Total Fund Balances 

8,223,306 

8,223,306 
  

Total Liahilities, Deferred halm% s of Re%ources, and Fund Balances $ g,6g9,232 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



Statement D 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET  
TC) THE GOVERN)t7FNT-W1I)E FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds (Statement C) 8223.306 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because 

Capital assets used in govermnental activities are not tinancial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governrnental Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,0)9.172 

Prepaid Expenses not recorded in the fund basis financial statements. 101,2(i0 

Ad Valorern taxes collected after year-end, but not availahle soon enough to pay 
for current expenditures 328,253 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and. 
therefore, not reported in the governmental funds. 

Accrued Sick Leave Payable (70.699) 

Unfunded Net Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligation (9,105,791) 
Net Pension Liability (1.)98,999) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,421,749 
Deferred Inflows of Resources (2,598,639) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement A) $ (670.388) 

I he accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement E 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Revenues 

General 
Fund 

 

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 5,641,030 

Intergovernmental 

 

State Revenue Sharing 368,040 

Fees Charged to Other Governments 38,429 

CharL,es for Services 10,987 

Intel-est 71,691 

Other 9411 

Total Revenues 6,131,117 

Expenditures 

General Go% ernment: 

 

Salaries 2,322,464 

Benefits 1,571,593 

Payroll Taxes 47,500 

Insurance 41,801 

Other Operating 98,699 

Professional Fees 719,176 

Repairs and Maintenance 26.062 

Supplies 187,634 

Tax Collector 52,819 

Travel and Training 146,777 

Utihties 45,639 

Capital Outlays 705,369 

Total Expenditures 5,9(i5,533 

Net Change in Fund Balances 165.584 

Fund Balance, Beginning 8,057,722 

Fund Balance, Ending $ 8,223,306 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement F 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

RECONCILLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL HINDS  

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds (Statement E) 165,584 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because. 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of these assets are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period. 

Expenditures for capital assets 

Less: 

Current year depreciation 

Insurance and service contracts which cover future periods are reflected in 
expenditures on the 2overnmental funds However, the statenient of net position 
accounts for these expenses as prepaid. 

Compensated Absences payable after one year are not recorded as an 
expenditure in the governmental funds, but they are recorded as an expenditure 
in the statement of activities. (This entry records the change in compensated 
absences.) 

Non-employer contributions to cost-sharing pension plan 

Pension Expense 

Increases in unfunded post-emplovment benefit obligations for medical 
insurance expected in future periods are not recorded for governmental funds 
on the fund basis. 

Deferred inflows of resources for ad valorem taxes collected after year end, but 
not available soon enough to pay for current expenditures changed by the 
following arnount. 

S 705,369 
  

 (63,158)  642,211 

   

41,585 

(26,200) 

656,909 

(1.254,710) 

(517,867) 

(14,231) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities. Statement B    (306,719) 
     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement G 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES„NND CHANES IN FUND BALANCES -  
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) ANI) ACTUAL  

GENERAL FUND  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

 

Actual Amounts 
GAAP Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget Original Final 

    

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 5.290,000 S 5,620.000 $ 5.641,030 $ 21,030 

Intergm ernmental 

     

State Revenue Sharing 130.000 130.000 

 

368.040 238,040 
Fees Charged to Other Governments 

   

38.429 38,429 

Charges for Services 

   

10,987 10,987 
Grants 

 

250,000 

  

(250,000) 

Interest 

 

50,000 

 

71,691 21,691 

Other 100,000 110.000 

 

940 (109,060) 

Total Revenues 5.520.000 6,160.000 

 

6.131.11 7 (28.883) 

Expenditures 

     

General Government 

     

Salaries 2.175,000 2,400.000 

 

2.322,464 77,536 
Benefits 1.495,000 1,500.000 

 

1.571,593 (71,593) 

Payroll Taxes 

   

47.500 (47,500) 

Insurance 

   

41.801 (41,801) 

Other operating 510.000 510.000 

 

98.699 411,301 

Professional Fees 700,000 800,000 

 

719,176 80,824 

Repairs and Maintenance 

   

.26,062 (26,062) 

Supplies 100,000 100,000 

 

187,634 (87,634) 

Tax Collector 

   

52.819 {52,819) 

Travel and Training 40.000 150.000 

 

146.777 3,223 

Utilities 

   

45.639 (45,639) 

Capital ()utlays 500,000 700.000 

 

705,369 (5,369) 
Total Expenditures 5.520,000 6,160.000 

 

5.965,533 194,467 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

   

165,584 165,584 

Fund Balances, Beginning 8.057.722 8,057.7i1 

 

8.057.722 

 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 8.057,722 S 8.057.722 s 8.223,306 $ 165,584 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Introduction 

As provided by Article VII, Section 24 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. the Livingston Parish Assessor 
(Assessor) is elected by the voters of the parish and serves a four-year term. The Assessor assesses all real and 
movable property in the parish, subject to ad valorem taxation. The Assessor is authorized to appoint as many 
deputies as may be necessary for the efficient operation of the office and provides assistance to the taxpayers of 
the parish. The deputies are authorized to perform all functions of the office, but the Assessor is officiallv and 
pecuniary responsible for the actions of the deputies. 

The Assessor's office is located in Livingston. Louisiana. In accordance with Louisiana law, the assessor bases 
real and movable property assessments on conditions existing on January 1 of the tax year The Assessor 
completes an assessment listing by May 1 of the tax year and submits the list to the parish governing authority 
and the Louisiana Tax Commission as prescribed by law. Once the assessment listing is approved, the Assessor 
submits the assessment roll to the parish tax collector who is responsible for collecting and distributing taxes to 
the 1, arious taxing hodies. 

At December 31. 2023, there are 69,242 real property and movable property assessments totaling $958,619.397. 
This represents an increase of 638 assessments totaling $43,336.915 over the prior year, caused primarily by the 
increasing number of new businesses and residential growth in the parish dunng the year. Propenies in 
Livingston Parish are reassessed every four years. The next reassessment is in 2024. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended, establishes criteria for 
determining the reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under 
provisions of this statement, the Livingston Parish Assessor is considered a component unit of the Livingston 
Parish Council. As a component unit, the accompanying financial statements are to be included within the 
reporting of the primary government, either blended within those financial statements or separately reported as a 
discrete component unit. Under provisions of this statement, there are no component units of the Assessor. The 
accompanying tinancial statements present information only on the funds maintamed by the Assessor and Jo not 
present information on the Council or the general government services provided hy that gm ernmental unit. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report intbrmation on all nonfiduciary activities of the Assessor. For the most part, the effect 
of interfund activity, if any has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which 
nornially are supported hy taxes anJ intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities. which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, a primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the pnmary 
government is financially accountable. The Assessor does not have any business-type activities and 
reports only governmental actnities. The Assessor has only one fiind and as such, there is no interfund 
activity. The Assessor has no coniponent units. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

These financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements, Management's Discussion and Ana4wis, Pr State und Local Governments, as amended by 
GASB Statements described in the following paragraphs. Statement No. 34 estabhshed standards for 
financial reporting, with presentation requirements originally including a statement of net assets (or 
balance sheet), a statement of activities, and a statement of cash flows. The definition and composition 
of these statements, as originally detined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as amended by GASB 
Statements included in the following paragraphs. The Assessor has also adopted the provisions of 
GASB Statenient No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting fin. 4Vonevchange Transactions that 
require capital contributions to the Assessor to he presented as a change in net position. 

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Dekrred Outflows Resources, Deferred Ii!flows 
Resources. and Net Positwn, effective for financial statement periods ending afler December 15. 2012, 
provides guidance tbr reporting deterred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net 
position in a statement of financial position and relatrd disclosures. Concepts Statement No. 4. 
£Icrrment.c cf Financial Statements, introduced and defined Deferred Ouylows of Resources as a 
consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and 
Deferred Inflows qf Resources as an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a 
future reporting period, respectively Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance tbr 
reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and hahilitiCs. GASB 
Concepts Statement 4 identities net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a 
statement of financial position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement 
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysisfor State and Local 
Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by 
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The definition and reporting of net 
position is further described in Footnote I - Net Position and Fund Balance. As required by the GASB. 
the Assessor implemented GASB Statement No. 63 during the year ending December 31, 2012. 

I)uring the year ended December 31. 2012, thr Assessor also adopted GASB Statement No. 65. Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. 
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes. as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certam items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. 
The Assessor had deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension and other post-
employment benefit obligations of $3,421,749 and $2,598,639, respectively. at December 31, 2023. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offiet hy program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Proggain revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges prol, ided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
fiinds, even though the latter are excluded frorn the eovernment-wide financial statements. Ivlajor 
indn idual govenunental funds and major individual enterprise funds are presented as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. The Assessor reports only one fund: a governmental fund — the general 
fund. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. enues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
governrnent considers revenues to be a% ailable if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accountinL,. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period if they are rneasurable and available. Only the portion of special assessment receivable. if any. 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current 
period. Substantially all other revenue items are considered to be rneasurable and available only when 
cash is recened by the government. 

The Assessor reports the following major governmental funds: 

The Generul Fund is the Assessor's primary operating fund. It accounts for and reports all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund (none in 
the current year). 

Amounts reported as program revenues include l ) charges to customers or applicants for goods. 
services, or privileges provided; 2) program-specific operating punts and contributions; and. 3) 
program-specific capital grants and contrihutions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

C. Deposits and Investments 

The Assessor's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, time 
deposits, and short-terni investrnents with onginal matunties of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. State law limits the Assessor to deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-hearing demand 
deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and 
national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 

)8 



LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C(►NTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

In accordance with state law, the Assessor limits its investments to those allowed under R.S. 33:2955. 
Certificates of deposit are classified as investments if their original tnaturities exceed 90 days. 
Investments are reported at fair value. except nonparticipating investment contracts which are repriced 
at cost 

D. Receivables and Payables 

All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. 

E. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

A11 inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method. Inventories of the governmental 
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. The Assessor did not 
have any inventory at December 31, 2023. Certain payments to vendors reflect cost, applicable to future 
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide financial staternents. 

F. Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for a specified 
purpose are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited to specitic expenditures. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statement. Capital assets are capitalized at historical 
cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets and donated works are recorded 
as capital assets at acquisition value at the date of donation. Capital assets received in a service 
concession arrangernent are recorded at their acquisition value at the date of receipt. The Assessor 
inaintains a threshold level of $1,500 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and irnprovernents are capitalized 
as projects are constructed 

All capital assets. other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
useful lives: 

Description Estimated Lives 

Buildings and Improvements I() - 40 Years 
Equipment and Furniture - 25 Years 
Computers 5 Years 

Vehicles 5 Years 



LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

H. C:ompensated Absences 

All full-time employees are ehgible for 200 hours of Paid Time Off ("PTO") each calendar year 
beginning January 1 of each year. During the first year of employment, eligible employees will be 
allowed a pro-rated number of PTO hours. Paid Time Off does not accrue as a wage and does not carry 
over from year to year, except that up to 40 hours of unused "PTO" may be carried over for one 
calendar year with prior approval from Assessor. The carned over "PTO" will not carry over or accnie 
beyond one calendar year 

Additionally, employees may earn paid comp time in exchange for overtime hours worked. Comp time 
is approved in advance by the Assessor prior to being earned by the employee. Employees may carry a 
maximum of 80 hours of comp time over from year to year. Anv hours earned in excess of 80 hours are 
paid out at the next payroll date. Employees are entitled to any earned comp time up to 80 hours at the 
time of termination of employment. 

A liahility for accrued compensation time is reported on the government-wide lcvel in accordance of 
GASB Codificanon Section C60 

I. Net Position and Fund Balance 

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Fitunicial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis. for &ate 
and Local Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate components. GASB 
Statement No. 63, Fmuncial Reporung of Deferred Outflows qf Resources, Deferred Wows of 
Resources. and Net Position, revised the terminology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred intlows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual 
measure and by renaming that measure as net position. rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 63 
for the government-wide financial statements requires the following components of net position: 

When hoth restricted and unrestricted resottrces are available for use. it is the Assessor's policy to use 
restricted resources tirst, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

When restricted. comnutted, assigned_ or unassigned fund balances are available for use, the Assessor 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of restricted funds, then committed funds, then assigned 
funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed, unless it has been provided for otherwise in the 
restriction, commitment, or assignment action. 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets - The net investment in cupitul assets component of net position 
includes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
irnprovement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also 
should be included in this component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt 
proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt 
or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent amount should not be included in the 
calculanon of net investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deterred inflows of 
resources should be included in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the 
unspent amount. The Assessor does not have any capital related deht or capital related deferred 
inflow of resources. The component is investrnent in capital assets in the current year. 
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• Restricted Net Position - The restricted component of net position consists of restncted assets 
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability 
relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition 
of a liabiliry or if the liability will he liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

• Unrestricted Net Position - The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred intlows of resources that are not 
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net 
position. 

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund halance. The Assessor 
adopted GASB 54 for the year ended December 31, 2011. As such, fund balances of governmental 
fiinds are classified as follows: 

• Nonspendable - These are amounts that cannot be spent either, because they are in a nonspendable 
form or hecause they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted - These are amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes, because of 
constitutional provisions, enabling legislation or constraints that are externally imposed by creditors. 
grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. Net position should be 
reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either: (a) Externally imposed 
by creditors {such as through debt covenants). grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of 
other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed - These are amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a fornial 
action of the Assessor, which is the highest level of decision making authority of the Livingston 
Parish Assessor. To be reported as committed amounts, they cannot be used for any other purposes 
unless the Assessor removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was 
employed when the funds were initially committed. 

• Assigned - These are ainounts that do not meet the criteria to he classified as restricted or 
committed but are intended to be used fbr specific purposes based on the discretion of the Assessor. 

• Unassigned - These are amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and amounts that have 
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. Also, 
within other governmental funds, these include expenditure amounts incurred tbr specific purposes 
which exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those purposes. 

J. c'ompa rative Data/Reclassifications 

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized information in total. Such information 
does not include sufficient details to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles Accordingly. such information should be read in conjunction with the Assessor's 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, from which the summarized inforniation 
was derived. 
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Certain items in the 2022 financial statements may have heen reclassified to confonn to the presentation 
in the current year financial statements. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported 
change in net position or excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses. 

K. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the Assessor, which are either 
unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

L. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of 
the tinancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. 
Actual results could differ frorn those estimates, such difference could be material. 

11I. Reconciliations of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position is presented in Statement D of the basic financial statenients. 
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues. expenses, and 
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities is presented in Statement F of 
the basic financial statements. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountabilitv 

Budget Information 

The Assessor uses the following budget practices. 

1. The Assessor prepares a Cieneral Fund budget. on the modified accrual basis of accounting, at the 
beginning of each year based upon prior year expenditures and anticipated revenues for the budget year. 
The proposed budget is made available for public inspection no later than 15 days prior to the beginning 
of the year. A public hearing on the budget is advertised in the Livingston Parish News. 

3. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 
4. Budget amounts included in the accompanying fmancial statements include the ongmal adopted 

budgets. 
5. Formal budgetary integation (with the accounting system) is employed as a management control 

device. During the fiscal year, actual resenues and expenditures are compared to budgeted revenues and 
expenditures by the Assessor. If actual revenues are falling short of budgeted revenues by 5% or more. 
or if actual expenditures to date plus projected expenditures for the remainder of the year exceed the 
budgeted expenditures by 5% or more, the original budget is amended by the Assessor. 

There were no niaterial variances in actual revenues and other sources under hudgeted revenues and other 
sources or actual expenditures and other sources over budgeted amounts for the year ended December 31. 
2023 that would have resulted in a violation of the Local Government Budeet Act. 
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3. (:ash and Cash Equivalents 

At December 31, 2023, the Assessor has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) as follows. 

December 31, 

 

2023 

Cash on Hand 500 

Demand Deposits 1,008,542 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) 2,573,725 

Total 3,58/,767 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured hy federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by 
the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged secunties plus the Federal deposit insurance must at 
all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal aeent. These securities are held in the name of the 
pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Even 
though the pledged securities, if applicable, are considered =collateralized (Category 3) under the 
provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39.1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the 
custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the Assessor 
that the tiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure. the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Assessor does not have a formal policy for custodial risk. However, 
under state law. these deposits (or the resulting hank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance, 
or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank At Decemher 31, 2023, the Assessor had 
$1,472,628 in deposits other than LAMP in financial institutions (collected bank halances). These deposits 
of $1.472,628 (bank balance) consisted of $1,261,150 in demand deposits and $211,478 in certificates of 
deposit (See Note 4). The Assessor's demand deposits of $1.261.150 and $211,478 of its certificates of 
deposit are held at one financial institution. Of the $1,261,150 in demand deposits, $250,000 is secured from 
risk by federal deposit insurance of $250,000 and the remaining $1,111,150 is secured hy pledged securities. 
The $1,111,150 is exposed to custodial credit risk because while the amount is secured by pledged 
securities. such securities are held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB 
Category 3). The $211,748 of certificates of deposit are fully covered by federal deposit insurance. 

LAMP is designed to he highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. 
Livingston Parish Assessor records its investments in LAMP as cash and cash equivalents. See further 
discussion on LAIvIP in Note 4. 

4. Investments 

Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk. 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held hy the Assessor or its agent in the Assessor's name 
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with secunties held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the 

Assessor's name 
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3 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent 
but not in the Assessor's name 

At December 31, 2023, Livingston Parish Assessor investment balances consisted of the following: 

Niaturity Date Fair Value 

Certificates of Deposit August 25. 2024 $ 211,478 
   

In accordance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting jOr Certain Investments and Pr Eyternal 
Investment Pools, all investments, when held, are carried at fair value, with the estimated fair value based on 
quoted market prices. 

Interest Rate Risk: The Assessor does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities 
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value arising from increasing interest rates 

The Assessor held one certificate of deposit that qualified as an investment, at December 31, 2023, with a 
market value of $211,478. The certificate of deposit bears an interest rate of 2.501/4  and will mature on 
August 25, 2024. The certificates of deposit are not included in cash equivalents at December 31, 2023 
because their original maturity date is greater than 90 days. Anv penalty for early withdrawal would not 
have a material effect on the tinancial statements. 

The Assessor's in% estment in LAMP IN recorded as cash and cash equivalents as stated in Note 3. LAMP is 
administered by LAMP, Inc , a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. 
Only local government entities having contracted to panicipate in LAMP have an investinent interest in its 
pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe enviromnent for the placement of puhlic 
fimds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other 
obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to mvest in accordance with LSA-R.S. 
33:2955. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public 
entity investments. 

LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invests in a manner consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 

1. Credit risk:  LAMP is rated AAAm by Standards and Poor's. 
Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the pool. 
In\ estments m pools should be disclosed. but not categorized because they are not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The puhlic entity's investment is with the pool, not 
the securities that make up the pool: therefore, no disclosure is required. 

3. Concentration of credit risk. Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure 
requirement. 

4. Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to he highly liquid to give participants immediate access to their 
account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted average 
maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP a»et>» restricted to not more than 90 days and consists 
of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government tloatingivariable 
rate investments. The WAM for LAMP's total investments is 53 days as of December 31, 2023 
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5 Forei!ni currency risk. Not applicable to 2a7-like pools. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at Ur value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP 
and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value of the pool 
shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the hoard of directors. LAMP is 
not registered with the SEC as an investment company. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact 
the LAMP administrative office at 800-249-5267. 

5. Levied Taxes 

Louisiana Revised Statute 47:1925.2 created a special assessment district to provide ad valorem taxes 
revenue to fund the operations of the Assessor. 

Ad alorem taxes are levied in September or October and are billed by the Livingston Parish Sheriff and are 
due on November 15, the levy date. and they become delinquent on the following January 1. The taxes are 
generally collected in December of the current year and January through March of the following year. Ad 
valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the following year. 

The Livingston Parish Assessor is authorized to levy up to 8.32 mills in ad valoreni taxes. A 8.32 mill ad 
valorem tax was levied for the year ended Deceniber 31. 2023. The total assessed valuation for all taxpayers 
at December 31, 2023 was $958,619,397. There were no individual taxpayers whose assessed tax was 
greater than 5% of the total taxes assessed 

6. Receivahles 

The Ciovernmental Fund recenables at December 31, 2023 consist of the following: 

Government Receivables 
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 4,853,162 

Due frorn Other Governrnents 40,063 
Other Receivables 1,7O 

Total Governmental Receivables 4.894,%7 

Uncollectible amounts due for Ad Valorem taxes are recognized as bad debts throwth the establishment of 
an allowance account at the tinie information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of 
the particular receivable. The estimated uncollectible amount at December 31, 2023 for Ad Valorem taxes 
is $228,513. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 for governmental 
activities is as follows. 
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Beginning 

   

Ending 
Governmental Activities Capital Assets: Balance Increases 

 

Decreases Balance 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 

    

Construction in Progress S 132.488 S 290,437 S 

 

$ 411.915 

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 132.488 290,437 

  

4/2.9'5 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 

    

Buildinits and Improvements 339,888 

  

339,888 
Vehicles 80.778 49,997 

  

130,775 

Machinery and Equipment 290.775 14,585 

  

305,360 
Computers 160.5/6 10,462 

 

- 370,988 
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 731.079 414,932 

  

1,147,011 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

    

Buildings and Itnprovemrnts 5,197 

  

5,197 
Vehicles 47,655 25,563 

  

73,218 
Machinery and Equipment 74.324 28,783 

  

103.107 
Computers 35s.0-7 3,615 

  

359.142 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 477.606 63,158 

  

540.764 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 154.473 351,774 

  

606,247 
Total Governmental Activities Capital 

Assets, Net $ 386,961 $ 642 211 $ 

 

$ 1 029,172 

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

    

General Government 

   

63,158 

Capital asset increases included the purchase of $339,888 storage building and office renovations, 510.462 
in computer hardware. $290,437 in software, $14,585 in office equipment and $49,997 in new vehicles. 
There were no disposals for 2023. 

8. Retirement Systems 

A. Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary 

Substantially all employees of the LivinL,ston Parish Assessor's office are members of the Louisiana 
Assessors' Retirement System (System). a cost-sharing. multiple-employer detined benefit pension plan 
administered by a separate board of trustees. 

The Assessor implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on 
Accounting and Financial Reporting fin. Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition Pr 
contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB 68. These 
standards require the Assessor to record its proportional share of each of the pension plans' net pension 
liability and report the following disclosures: 

Plan Description:  The Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund was created hy Act 91 Section 1 of the 
1950 regular Legislature Session. The fund is a cost sharing, multiple-employer, qualified 
governmental defined benefit pension plan covering assessors and their deputies employed by any 
parish of the State of Louisiana, under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 11.401 through 
1494 The plan is a qualified plan a.s defined hy the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a), effective 
January 1, 1998. Membership in the Fund is a condition of employment for assessors and their full-time 
employees. 
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Retirement Benefits: 
Plan benefits are as follows: 

For employees hired prior to October 1. 2013. 
Any age with 30 or more Vears of creditable service 
Age 55 with 12 years of creditable service 

For emplovees hired after October 1, 2013: 
Agc 55 with 30 years of service 
Age 60 with 12 years of service 

Nlembers whose first employment making them eligible for membership began prior to October 1, 2006, 
are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to three and one-third percent of their hiehest monthlv 
average final compensation received during any 36 consecutive months, multiplied by their total years 
of service, not to exceed 100°.;) of monthly al, erage final compensation. Members whose first 
employment making them eligible for membership began on or after October 1, 2006 but before 
October 1. 2013, are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to three and one-third percent of their 
highest monthly average final compensation received during any 60 consecutive months, multiplied by 
their total years of sen ice, not to exceed 100% of monthly average final compensation. Members whose 
first employment making them eligible for membership began on or after October 1, 2013 but who have 
less than thirty years of service, are entitled annual pension benefits equal to three percent of their 
highest monthly average final compensation received during any 60 consecutn e months, multiplied by 
their total years of service, not to exceed 100% of monthly average final compensation. Members whose 
first employment making them eligihle for membership began on or after October 1, 2013 and ha% e 
thirty or more years of service. are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to one and one-third percent 
of their highest monthly average final compensation received during any 60 consecutive months, 
multiplied by their total years of service. not to exceed 100% of monthly average final compensation. 
Members may elect to receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion 
of their accumulated plan benefits attributahle to the employer's contributions. Benefits are payable 
over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. Employees may elect to receive the 
actuarial equivalent of their retirement allowance in a reduced retirement payable throughout life with 
the following options: 

1. If the member dies before he has received in retirement payments purchased by his contributions the 
amount he had contributed to the fund before his retirement, the balance shall be paid to his legal 
representatives or to such person as he shall nominate by written designation. 
Upon the member's death, his reduced retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life 
of and paid to his surviving spouse. 

3 Upon the member's death, one-half of his reduced retirement allowance shall be continued 
throughout the life of and paid to his surviving spouse. 

4. The member may elect to receive some other hoarJ-approved benefit or henefits that together with 
the reduced retirement allowance shall be of equivalent actuarial value to his retirement allowance. 

,S'urrti•or Benefits: 
The Fund prox ides benefits for surviving spouses and nnnor chrldren under certain conditions which are 
outlined in the Louisiana Revised Statutes 
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Distibifiti.  Benefits:  
The Board of Trustees shall award disability henetits to eligible members who have been officially 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. The disability benefit shall be the lesser of 
(1) or (2) as set forth below: 

1. A sum equal to the greater of 45% of tinal average compensation or the member's accrued 
retirement benefit at the time of termination of employment due to disability: or 

• The retirement benefit which would be payahle assuming accrued creditable service plus additional 
accnied service, if any, to the earliest normal retirement age based on final average compensation at 
the time of termination of employment due to disabihty. 

Upon approl, al fim disahility benefits, the member shall exercise an optional retirement allowance as 
provided in R.S. 11.1423 and no change in the option seleeted shall be permitted after it has been filed 
with the board. The retirement option factors shall be the same as those utilized for regular retirement 
based on the age of the retiree and that of the spouse, had the retiree continued in active service until the 
earliest normal retirement date. 

Back-DROP (Deferred Retirement Option Plan) Benefits:  
In lieu of receiving a normal retirement benefit pursuant to R.S. 11.1421 throuah 1423. an ehgihle 
member of the Fund may elect to retire and have their benefits structured, calculated, and paid as 
provided in R.S. 11:1456.1. 

An active contributing member of the Fund shall be eligible for Back-DR()P only if all of the following 
apply: 

• The member has accrued more service credit than the minimum required for eligibility for a normal 
retirement benefit. 

• The member has attained an age that is &eater than the minimum required for eligihility for a 
normal retirement benefit, if applicable. 

• The member has revoked their participation, if any, in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
pursuant to R.S. 11:1456.1. 

At the time of retirement, a member who elects to receive a Back-DROP benefit shall select a Back-
DROP period to be specified in whole months. The duration of the Back-DROP period shall not exceed 
the lesser of 36 months or the number of months of creditable service accrued after the meniber first 
attained eligihility for normal retirement. The Back-DROP period shall be comprised of the most recent 
calendar days corresponding to the member's employment for which service credit in the Fund acerued. 

The Back-DROP benefit shall have two portions: a lump-sum portion and a monthly benefit portion. 
The member Back-Drop monthly benefit shall he calculated pursuant to the provisions applicahle for 
service retirement set forth in R.S. 11:1421 through 1423. subject to the following conditions: 

1 Creditable service shall not include service credit reciprocally recognized pursuant to R.S. 11.142. 
s Accrued service at retirement shall be reduced hy the Back-DROP period. 
3 Final average compensation shall be calculated hy excluding all earnings during the Back-DROP 

period. 
4. Contributions received hy the Fund during the Back-DROP period and any interest that has accmed 

on employer and employee contributions received during the period shall remain with the Fund and 
shall not be refUnded to the member or to the employer. 
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5. The member's Back-DROP monthly henetit shall be calculated based upon the member's age and 
service and the Fund provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service before the Back-
DROP period. 

6 At retirement, the member's maximum monthly retirement benefit payable as a life annuity shall be 
equal to the Back-DROP monthly bcnetit. 

7. The member may elect to receive a reduced monthly benefit in accordance with the option, 
provided in R.S. 11:1423 hased upon the member's age and the age of the member's beneficiary as 
of the actual effective date of retirement No change in the option selected or beneficiary shall be 
permitted afier the option is filed with the Board of Trustees. 

In addition to the monthly benefit received, the niemher shall be paid a lump-sum benefit equal to the 
Back-DROP maximum monthly retirement benefit multiplied by the number of months selected as the 
Back-DROP period. Cost-of-living adjustments shall not he payable on the member's Back-DROP lump 
sum. 

Upon the death of a member who selected the maximum option pursuant to R.S. 11.1423, the member's 
named beneficiary or, if none, the member's estate shall receive the deceased member's remaining 
contrihutions. less the Back-DROP benefit amount. Upon the death of a member who selected Option l 
pursuant to R.S. 11:1423, the member's named beneficiary or, if none, the member's estate, shall 
receive the member's annuity savings fund balance as of the member's date of retirement reduced hy the 
portion of the Back-DROP account balance and previously paid retirement benefits that are attrihutable 
to the member's annuity payments as provided by the annuity savings fund. 

Excess Benefit Plan 
Under the provisions of this excess benefit plan, a member may receive a benefit equal to the amount by 
which the member's monthly benefit from the Fund has been reduced because of the limitations of 
Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

FundIng  
Contributions for all members are established by statute at 8% of earned compensation. The 
contnbutions are deducted from the member's salary and renutted by the participating agency. 
Accordin2 to state statute. contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
The District's required contribution rate for the penod January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 was 
11.50% to 13 00(!.0. Employees were required to contribute 9.50% of their annual salary for the 
applicable period. Contributions to PERS from the District were $247.386 for the year ended 
December 31, 2023. 

Administrative costs of the Fund are financed through employer contributions. According to the state 
statute, contrihutions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. The actuarially determined 
employer contribution rate was 1.35°.;. for the year ended September 30. 2023. The actual employer 
contribution rate was 5.001!.0 of members' earnings for the year ended September 30. 2023. During the 
year ending December 31, 2023, the Assessor recognized revenue as a result of support received from 
non-employer contributing entities of 5656.909 for its participation in the Louisiana Assessors' 
Retirement Fund. 

The Fund also receives one-fourth of one percent of the property taxes assessed in each parish of the 
state, except for Orleans Parish. which is one percent. as well as a state revenue sharing appropriation. 
According to state statute, in the event that contributions for ad valorem taxes and revenue sharing funds 
are insufticient to provide tbr the gross employer actuarially required contributions, the employer is 
required to make direct contnhutions as determined by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee. 
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Pen.Cii)11 ASSers. Peasion £xpensa~, and Dcfored (J1ufows ().1 Re5mirces and Deterred Inflows ,)j. 

Resources Related to Pensions •  
At December 31, 2023, the Assessor reported a liability of $1,998,999 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension asset of the System. The net pension liabilitv was measured as of September 30, 2023, and 
the total pension liabihty used to calculate the net pension liability was deteimined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Assessor's proportion of the net pension liability was hased on a 
prolection of the Assessor's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contribution of all participating, actuarially determined. At Decemher 31, 2023, the Assessor's 
proportion was 4.079920%, which was an increase of 0.073780% fiom its proportion measured as of 
September 30, 2022. 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Assessor recopized pension expense of $1.502.155 which 
represents its proportionate share of the system's net expense including amortization of deferred 
amounts. 

At December 31, 2023, the Assessor reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the pension system from the following sources: 

 

Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 

Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 64,374 $ 1219,789) 

Changes of Assumptions 525,936 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 1.044,381 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 11,472 (18.819) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date '7,557 

 

Total $ 1,673.720 $ (238.608) 

The Assessor reported a total of $27,557 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of September 30, 2023, which will be 
recognized as a reduction in net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Other amounts reported as defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows. 
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Year 

2024 $ 338,105 

1 015 436,377 

2026 824.129 

2027 (177,399) 

2028 (13,657) 

 

$ 1.407,555 

Actuarial .-1.s..suinpuons.  

A stunmary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used m determming the total pension hability as 
of September 30, 2023, is as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases  

September 30. 2023 
Entry Age Normal 

Investment Rate of Return 5.50%, (Net of 
pension plan investment expense, including inflation) 

6 years 

2.10% 

5 715% 

Annuitant and beneficiary mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% with full generational projection usin2 the appropriate NIP-2019 
impro‘ ement scale. 

Active Members Mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees 
multiplied by 120% with full generational projection using the appropriate MP-2019 improvement 
scale. 

Disabled Lives Mortality Pub-2010 Puhlic Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled 
Retirees multiplied by 120% with full generational projection usrng the appropnate MP-2019 
improvement scale. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return hy weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allmation percentage and by adding expected inflation, of 2.5°.;.. 
and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing,diversitication. The resulting long-term expected 
arithmetic nominal return was 7.85% as of September 30. 2023. 

41 



LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Fund's target 
asset allocation as of Septeinher 30, 2023, are summarized in the tbllowing tahle: 

Asset Class  

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

   

Domestic Equity 7 50% 

International Equity 8.50% 

Domestic Bonds 2.50% 

International Bonds 3.50% 

Real Estate 4 50% 

For PERS, the discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.40% which remained 
unchanged from the prior measurement date of December 31, 2023. The projecnon of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contnbutions from the participating employers will be made at actuarially-
determined contribution rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved 
by the Board of Trusters and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on these 
assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore. the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected henefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 

Scricitivity qf the Etnplorcr's Proportionate Share ()Pile Net Pen.)ion Lr,rhilrrl ri.).)ett to ("hangc.) in the 
Diccount Rate:  The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the participating employers 
calculated using the discount rate of 5.50%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability (asset) 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 

Decrease  

Current 
Discount Rate  Pi) Increase 

     

Rates 4.50°;;) 5.5()°,.;, 6.5( 

Livmgston Parish Assessor Share of NPL $ 4.490,461 1.998,999 $ (119,494) 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Louisiana Assessors' Retirement System, Post Office Box 1786, Shreveport, Louisiana 71166-1786, or 
by calling (318) 425-4446. 
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B. Deferred Compensation and Pension Plan 

The Livingston Parish Assessor's Office offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code 457, Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 457(b) Eligihle 
Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust for Ciovernmental Entities. Each employee shall he eligible to 
participate in the Plan and defer compensation immediately upon becoming employed by the Lit ingston 
Parish Assessor. The amounts deferred on behalf of a participant under the plan shall he promptly 
remitted to the Institution and invested in the approved investments of the Institution designated by the 
participant on the deferral agreement. The approved investments of the participant, trustee, custodian or 
issuer, which are currently available to participants. shall be designated on the depository agreement 
executed by the institution or as an amendment thereto Changes in investments shall be made only 
upon the written request of the employee with the written consent of the Livingston Parish Assessor. 

The deferred compensation benefits are not available to participants until retirement, death, 
unforeseeable emergency or other severance from employment. 

The Assessor shall have the right at any time to amend the Plan in any manner it deems necessaiy or 
advisable in order to maintain the Plan and accounts established as an eligible deferred compensation 
plan as provided in Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code and any regulation thereunder. The 
Assessor shall have the right at any time to terminate or suspend the Plan afier thirty days prior written 
notice to the institution and the participants. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan. all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all incoine attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are the sole ownership of the 
participants. The Assessor has no further responsibility to the deferred compensation plan. 

In conjunction with the deferred compensation plan. the Assessor offers its employees a match under a 
defined contribution plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401. 

Plan Description. The Livingston Parish Assessor's Office participates in the Livingston Parish 
Assessor's Office Supplement Retirement Plan. a defined contribution plan. This plan is a deferred 
compensation plan and was adopted to help its employees save for retirement. This retirement plan is 
priinarily used hy local, state, and other government agencies, for retirement savings programs. 

The Plan Administrator is the Assessor and he may designate another person or persons to perfonn the 
duties of the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator has full discretionary authority to interpret the 
Plan, the Plan's terms, and the benefit rights of participants and beneficiaries. The Plan is held by the 
Plan Trustee in a qualified Trust. The Assessor has the authority to amend this Plan at any time. The 
Assessor can also terminate the Plan at any time. 

An employee will reach normal retirement age under the Plan when they attain the later of age 62 or 
reach their 5th anniversary of Plan participation. 

The Livingston Parish Assessor may make matching contrihutions to this Plan based on the amount of 
contributions an employee makes under the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 457(b) Plan. Matching 
contributions will he contributed to an employee's matching contribution account under the Plan at such 
time as the Assessor deents appropriate. Matching contributions may be contnbuted during the Plan 
year or after the Plan year ends. Any matching contributions made will be made in accordance with the 
following matching contribution formula. 
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• Tiered matching contribution formula. The Assessor will make a matching contnbution if an 
employee makes an elective deferral to the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 457(b) Plan. The 
matching contribution will vary depending on thr amount of elective deferral made to the 
Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 457(h) Plan during each payroll period. For elective deferrals 
made to the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 457(b) Plan up to the first 3% of Plan 
compensation during each payroll period, an employee will receive a matching contribution equal to 
500% of such amounts. 

The Plan allows contrihutions to the Plan on an employee's behalf without having to include such 
amounts in income. To qualify as a participant under the Plan. an employee must. 

a. Be an eligible employee 
b. Satisfy the Plan's minimum age and service conditions and 
c. Satisfv any allocation conditions required under the Plan 

To participate under the Plan, you must be an eligible employee For this purpose. you are considered an 
eligible ernployee if you are an employee of Livingston Parish Assessor's office, provided you are not 
otherwise excluded from the Plan. 

In order to participate in the Plan, you must satisfy certain age and service conditions under the Plan. 

• Minimum age requirement. In order to participate in the Plan an ernployee must be at least age 21. 
• Minimum service requirement. In order to participate in the Plan, an employee must work for the 

Assessor at least three months. For this purpose, an employee may receive credit for service earned 
during a period of severance if you are subsequently reemployed. 

An employer will be entitled to share in any matching contributions made to the Plan if an ernployee 
satisfies the eligibility conditions described above. An employee does not need to satisfy any additional 
allocation conditions to receive a matching contribution. An ernployee will receit e their share of 
matching contributions regardless of how many hours an employee works during the year or whether an 
employee terminates during the year. 

The IRS imposes a maximum limit on the total amount of contributions you may receive under this 
Plan. This limit applies to all contnbutions the Assessor's office makes on behalf of an employee, all 
contributions an employee contributes to the Plan, and any forfeitures allocated to any of an employee's 
accounts during the year. Under this limit, the total of all contributions under the Plan cannot exceed a 
specific dollar amount or 100% of an employee's annual compensation, whichever is less. 

When an employee takes a distribution of your benefits under the Plan, an employee is only entitled to 
withdraw their vested account balance. For this purpose, vested account balance is the amount held 
under the Plan on an employee's hehalf for which they have earned an ownership interest. An ernployee 
earns an ownership interest in the Plan benefits when they have earned enough service to become vested 
based on the Plan's vesting schedule. If an ernployee terminates hefore they hecome fully t ested in any 
of the Plan benefits, those non-vested amounts may be forfeited. 
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The following describes the vesting schedule applicable to contrihutions under the Plan. 

An employee becomes vested in their matching contributions in accordance with the "%esting schedule" 
set forth in the Plan. Under this vesting schedule, they will have an ownership interest in their matching 
contributions based on the number of years of vesting service completed. Based on the nurnber of years 
worked for the Livingston Parish Assessor, their vested percentage is as follows: 

Years of Vesting Service Vested Percentage  
b 

2 0° ;) 

3 
4 
5 100% 

100% 
7 100% 

8 locrb 
9 100Th 

10+ I 0W/0 

Once an employee is vested under the Plan, an employee has an ownership right to those amounts. An 
employee may not be ahle to immediately withdraw vested benefits from the Plan due to the distribution 
restrictions of the Plan. An employee will never lose the right to those vested amounts. However, it is 
possible that the benefits under the Plan will decrease as a result of investment losses. If benefits 
decrease hecause of investment losses, an employee will only be entitled to the ‘ested amount In their 
account at the time of distribution. 

The above vesting schedule no longer applies once an employee reaches normal retirement age under 
the Plan. Thus, if an employee is still employed at normal retirement age, they will automatically 
become 100°.;. vested in all contributions under the Plan. An employee will be fully ‘ested in their entire 
account balance (regardless of the Plan's vesting schedule) if the plan is temunated. In addition. if an 
employee dies while they are still employed, they will automatically become 100% vested. 

To calculate an employee's vested benefit under the Plan, an employees years of vesting service are 
used to determine where they are on the vesting schedule. An employee will he credited with a year of 
vesting service for each full year of service they work for the Livingston Parish Assessor. They also 
may be entitled to ser‘ ice earned during a period of se% erance if they are subsequently reemployed. 

Generally, in calculating years of vesting service, all service is taken into account, except for the 
following service. 

Service earned before the Assessor adopted this Plan 

If an employee terminates employment before, they become fully vested in the Plan benefits, they will 
he entitled to receive a distribution of their vested benefits under the Plan. The non-vested benefits will 
be forfeited as described below. An employee is not entitled to receive a distribution of non-vested 
benefits. 
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If an employee terminates employment at a time when they are only partially vested (or totally non-
vested) in any the Plan benefits, how the Plan treat their non-vested halance will depend on whether 
they take a distribution when they termmate employment. 

Forfeiture upon distribution. If an employee takes a distribution of their entire vested benefit when 
they terminate, their non-vested benefit will he forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Plan. If 
they are totally non-vested in any contributions made on their behalf, they will be deemed to receive a 
distribution for purposes of applying these forfeiture rules. 

Forfeiture upon five consecutive breaks in service. Ikpendmg on the value of an employee's vested 
benefits, they rnay be able to keep their henetits in the Plan when they terminate employment. If they do 
not take a distribution of their entire vested benefit when they terminate employment, their vested 
benefit will rernain in their account until they have incurred five consecutive breaks in service, at which 
time their non-vested benefit will be forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Plan. For this purpose. 
an employee will have a break in service for each year in which an employee works less than a full 
consecutive twelve months. Their vested balance will not he forfeited under this forfeiture rule. 

If any benefits are tbrfeited, the Assessor may decide how to use those forfeited amounts. They may use 
the funds to pay plan expenses or allocate the funds as additional employer contributions or use them to 
reduce other employer contributions under the Plan. The Assessor will determine each year the amount 
of any forfeitures for such year and will use those forfeitures in the Plan year for which the forfeiture 
occurs or in the following Plan year. 

Retirement expense recognized by the Livingston Parish Assessor for this retirement plan tim 2023 was 
$355,485. 

For the year 2023, there were no forfeitures reflected in pension expense and there was no liability 
outstanding at year end. 

9. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plun Description. The Livingston Parish Assessor contributes to a single-employer defined benefit 
healthcare plan ("Plan"). The Plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their 
spouses through the ingston Parish Assessor's group health insurance plan, which covers both active and 
retired members. Eligible members are those employees who work at least 35 hours a week for the 
Livingston Parish Assessor, who have completed a waiting period of thirty consecutive days while 
ernployed, and who are eligible for the Livingston Parish Assessor's retirement plan. Eligible members are 
also retired employees who are at least 55 years of age (or have at least 30 years of service regardless of 
age): who have at least 12 years of service with the Livingston Pansh Assessor, and who were covered 
under the Plan for a minimum of thirty consecutive days immediately preceding retirenient. Benefit 
provisions are established by the LIN. ingston Parish Assessor. The Plan does not issue a publicly available 
financial report. 

contribution Rates. Employees and spouses are not required to contribute to their post-employment benefits 
costs. 
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Plan Membership At January 1, 2023 (the valuation date), the Plan's membership consisted of the 
following: 

Active Ernployees 

Retirees 7 

Total OPEB 

The Assessor's total OPEB liabihty of $9,105,791 was measured as of December 31, 2023, and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods 
included in the rneasurernent, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.30% 
Salary Increases 3.001!..) 
Discount Rate 3.26% 
All Retirees Medical Trend 6.10% 
All Retirees Dental Trend 4 00% 
Participation Rate 100% of mernbers are assumed to elect retiree medical coverage at 

retirement 
Marriage For actives, it is assumed that husbands are 3 years older than their 

wives with 40% of active participants electing spouse coverage 
at retirement 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Index as of 
Decernber 31, 2023. 

Mortality rates were based on the followine: 

Health retirement: Sex-distinct Pub-2010 General Mortality with separate employee and healthy annuitant 
rates, projected generationally usina IRS 2024 Adjusted Scale MP-2021. 

Beneficiaries: Sex-distinct Pub-2010 General Contingent Survivors Mortality. projected generationally 
using IRS 2024 Adjusted Scale MP-2021. 

Disability retirernent: Sex-distinct Pub-2010 Cieneral Disabled Retirees Mortality. projected generationally 
using IRS 2024 Adjusted Scale MP-2021. 
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 7,885,787 

Changes for the year. 

 

Service cost 366,722 

Interest on total OPEB 305,370 

Effect of Assumptions, changes or inputs 635,982 

Benefit payments (88,070) 

Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 9,105.791 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discom rate. The following presents the total OPEB 
liability of the Assessor, as wdl as what the Assessor's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.26%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.26%) than the 
current discount rate: 

1% Decrease 
(2.2(>°•;,)  

Discount Rate 
(3.26%)  

1% Increase 
(4.26%)      

Total OPEB Liability $ 1l).79£S,y74 $ 9,105,791 $ 7,764,068 

Sen.sitiviilv of the total OPEB hahihty to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the Assessor, as well as what the Assessor's total C)PEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher 
than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease  

Current Trend 
Rate  1q.i, Increase 

     

Total OPEB Liability $ 7.808,399 $ 9,105,971 $ 10,766,244 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Assessor recognized OPEB expense of $605,937. At 
December 31, 2023, the Assessor reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflow of resources 
to OPEB frorn the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Inflows of Outflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ (85,119) $ 373,394 

Changes of Assumptions (2,274,912) 1.374,635 

Total $ (1360,031) $ 1.74tO19 
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Amounts reported as deterred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will 
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years Ending December 31: 

 

2024 (66,155) 

1015 (57,310) 

2016 (146.999) 

2027 (326,088) 

2028 (50,502) 

Thereafter 35,052 

 

(6 1 2,002) 

10. Accounts and Accrued able% 

Governmental Funds Payable 

 

Accounts 66,725 
Other 

 

Pension Fund Deduction Payahle 52,819 

Payroll Liabilities Payable l 8,129 

Total Governmental Funds Payable 137,673 
  

11. Long-Term Liabilities 

The Assessor did not have any long-term obligations at Ieceuber 31, 2023, except for the unfunded 
Pension and C)PEB obligation as described in Note 9 and the compensated absences payable of $70.699. 

12. Expenditures of the Assessor not included in the Financial Statements 

Certain operating expenditures of the Livingston Parish Assessor are provided by the Livingston Parish 
Council and are not included in the accompanying financial statements. The Parish is responsible for the 
payment of utilities, pest control, and alarm security services for the Assessor's portion of the huilding and 
shall not exceed $25,000 annually. See Note 15 for further information on the Cooperative Endem or 
Agreement with Livingston Parish Council. 

13. Risk Management 

The Assessor is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft, damage, or destruction of assets, torts, 
injuries, natural disasters, and inany other unforeseeable events. The Assessor purchases commercial 
insurance policies and bonds for any and all claims related to the aforementioned risks. The Assessor's 
payment of the insurance policy deductible is the only liability associated with these policies and bonds. 
There has been no significant decrease in insurance coverage from the prior year. and the amount of 
settlements has not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. 
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14. Contingent Liabilities 

The Livingston Parish Assessor is not involved in any outstanding litigation or claims requiring accrual or 
disclosure. 

15. Cooperative Endeavor Agreements 

The Livingston Parish Assessor has a cooperatne endeavor agreement with the Parish of Livingston, 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement District, and the Livingston Parish Clerk of Court to constmct an office 
building for the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office, and storage space for the Livingston Parish Sheriff's 
Office, Livingston Parish Clerk of Court and the 21' Judicial District Court. In exchange for providing this 
tract of land for the Livingston Parish Assessor, Livingston Parish Sheriff, Livingston Parish Clerk of Court 
and the 21' Judicial District Court agreed to fund the costs of the construction as set forth within the 
agreement Livingston Parish Assessor, Livingston Parish Sheriff, Livingston Parish Clerk of Court and the 
21' Judicial District Court will he given exclusive use of the building for 99 years to be extended for 
additional periods of time by the Parish Council if the building is still needed. The Parish will only be 
responsible for the payment of utilities, pest control and alarm security services for the Assessor's portion of 
the building which shall not exceed $25,000 annually. The Sheriff, Clerk and 21" Judicial District Court will 
pay for the utility services provided to their respective storage space. The Assessor, from his funds, paid 
1001!/0 of thr cost of thr part of the building as designated for the Assessor in the plan. In addition. thereto, 
he paid 25% of the cost of construction of the parkine lot. This agreement was executed on October 12, 
2017. The building was completed in 2019 and the Assessor occupied the building beginning August 2019. 

16. Tax Abatements 

The Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program (ITEP) is an original state incentive program 
which offers attractive tax incentive for manufacturers within the state. The program abates, for up to ten 
years, local property taxes (ad valorem) on a manufacturer's new investment and annual capitalized 
additions related to the manufacturing site. The exemption is granted per contract with the Louisiana 
Department of Economic Development and will specify the buildings and-or personal property items 
covered hy the exemption. There are currently thirteen companies in Livingston Parish under the Louisiana 
ITEP. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the estimated forgone ad valorem taxes due to the Assessor 
due to this abatement program was $106,370. 

17. Current Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

The following statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) are effective for the 
Assessor's 2023 fiscal year. The Assessor has adopted and implemented these statements in the preparation 
of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023: 

1. During the year, the Assessor adopted GASB Statement No 96, Subscription-Based hifiirmation 
Technologv Agreemems iSBITAsi. This new accounting standard has no material effect on the 
Assessor's tinancial statements. 

2. During the year the Assessor also adopted GASB Statement No. 91. Conduit Debt Obligattons, No. 
94, Pubhc-Private and Public-Public Partnerslups und Availability Payment Arrangements, and the 
portion of No. 99 Omnibus 2022 that relates to leases, PPP, and SBITAs. These statements had no 
material effect on the Assessor's financial statements. 
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18. (:urrent Accounting Pronouncements 

The following statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board will be effective for years 
subsequent to the Assessor fiscal year 2023. 

1. Statement No. 99 - Omnibus 2022 (2024) - the portion that relates to financial guarantees and the 
classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53. 
Statement No 100 - Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB No. 62 
(2024) 

3. Statement No 101 — Compensated Absences ( 2024) 

Management is currently evaluating the effects of the new GASB pronouncements. 

19. Suhsequent Events 

Subsequent et ents have been evaluated by management through June 28. 2024, the date the report was 
available for issuance. No other events were noted that require recording or disclosure in the financial 
statements for the fiscal vear ending December 31, 2023. 
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Schedule 1 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEUMBER 31, 2023 

Total OPEB Liability: 

Service Cost 

Interest 

Effect of Economiclkmog•aphic Gains 

or (Losses) 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

$ 366.722 

305.370 

S 488 (1O 

215 '26 

545.068 

S 499,421 

193341 

S 424.291 

213,048 

(97.45 7) 

S 305.7,S3 

237.692 

$ 59985) 

270,656 

(219430) 

Effect of Prior Year Liability Adjustments 

  

582,682 

  

- 

Total Changes of Assumptions 635,982 (3,278,515) 137,566 786.000 1,364,520 (125.661) 

Benefit Payments (88.07()) (87,329) (61,362) (51.769) (44,970) (30,58(►) 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 1,220.004 (2,116.854) 1,351.649 1,274,113 1,863,025 (1,769.376) 

Beginning (WEB Liability 7,885,787 10,002.641 8.650.992 7,376.879 5.513,854 7.283.230 

Ending OPEB Liability $ 9 105,791 $ 7.885 787 S 10.002 (41 S .650.997 S 7.376.879 $ 5,513,854 

Covered Payroll S S 1.931,835 S 1.930,485 S 1,789.554 S 1.790,013 S 1,614.204 

Employees OPEB liability as a percentage 

of eovered-employee payroll 392 52')..n 408.20".o 518.14% 483 41° i) 412.11% 341.58% 

Notes tu Schedule: 

Benijit Oanges None None None None None None 

Changes rff Assumptions: 

Discount Ratc • 3.26";) 3.7210 2.06°.0 .) 11% 2.741'0 4 10% 

Afiwality: MP-2021 MP-2021 MP-2021 MP-2020 N1P-2019 MP-2018 

Trend Variable Variable Variable Variable Variable Variable 

No asscts are accumulated in a trust that meets the cntena on paragraph 4 of Statement 75. 

This schedule ts intended to show infOrmationliir JU yars. .4dditional years-  will he displayed as they 

hecome uruiluhlc. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Schedule 2 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESS()R 

SCHEDULE E(1) THE ASSESSOR'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE i\TET PENSION LIAIBLITY 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* 

Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary: 

Employer's 

  

Employer's 

 

Proportionate Share Plan Fiduciary Net 
Employer's Proportionate 

 

of the Net Position Position as a 
Proportion of the Share of the Net Employer's Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of the 

Net Pension Pension Liability Covered Percentage of its Total Pension 
Liability (Assets) (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll 

 

2015 3.909484°,-;. 2,045,922 $ 1.642,732 124.543870% 85 570000% 
2016 3.840189% 1,355,085 1,673,188 80.988209% 90 677700% 

2017 3.601225% 631,911 1,581,003 39.968994% 95.610400°.;) 
2018 3.419529% 664,769 1,507,274 44.104058% 95.456600°.;) 
2019 3.615910% 953,812 1,608,666 59.292109% 94.124382% 
20211 3.496951% 534,150 1,607,523 33.234371% 96 788359% 
2021 3.795550% (1,247,828) 1,757,043 -71.018657% 106 483515% 
2022 4.006146% /,653,802 1,912,776 138.740869% 87 152319% 

2023 4.079926% 1,998,999 2,006,139 99.644092% 90.907712% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 9 30 within the fiscal year. 

Schedule intended to show information for 10 yean. Additional yeam will he displayed as they 
become muiloble 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Schedule 3 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

SCHEDULE OF THE ASSESSOR'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary: 

  

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

 

Contributions 
in Relation to 
Contractually 

Required 
Contributions 

 

Contribution Employer's 
Deficiency Covered 
(Excess) roll 

Contributions as a 
% of Covered 

Payroll 

2015 $ 217.870 $ 217.870 $ $ 1,613.615 13.501982°;) 
2016 

 

248,472 

 

248,472 

 

1,700,876 14.608472% 
2017 

 

268,539 

 

268.539 

 

1.533,391 17.512754% 
2018 

 

244.817 

 

244.817 

 

1,530.106 16.000003°4 
2019 

 

257,067 

 

257,067 

 

1,606,666 16.000027% 

202t) 

 

261.394 

 

261,394 

 

1.633.711 16.000010% 
2021 

 

271.614 

 

271,614 

 

1.780.929 15.151256% 
2022 

 

245.846 

 

245,846 

 

1.946,271 12.631645% 
2023 

 

247,386 

 

247,386 

 

2,079,303 11.897545% 

&hednle is intended to show information jin• 1 yam. Additional years will he displayed as they 
become availabe. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Schedule 4 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 

TO ACiENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Agency Head: Jeff Taylor, Assessor 

Purpose Amount 

Salary S 166,684 

Benefits - Insurance (health, life, disability) 56,5 '6 

Benefits - Retirement 19,585 

Benefits - Deferred Compensation-Match 38,337 

Car Allowance '5,002 

Per Diem and Meals Reimbursement 2,118 

Employer Paid Payroll Taxes 2,779 

Travel - Lodging 5,071 

Travel - Conference Workshop Registration Fees 1,380 

Travel - Airfare:Transportation Costs 1,117 

Total S 318,599 

See independent auditor's rcport. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 



LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

This section, which is composed of accounting and non-accounting data, is presented in order to provide the 
reader with additional information as an aid to understanding the financial activities of the gm ernmental unit. 

INDEX Table Pam 

Financial Trends Information - These schedules contain trend infOrmation to help the reader undemtand how 
the govorthent Is financial pegOrmance and well-being have changed over rime. 

Net Position by Component, Last Ten Years l 57 

Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years  

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years 3 59 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years 4 60 

Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years 61 

Revenue Capacity Information - These schedules contain information to help the reader USSeSS the 
government :s• most significant local revenue sources, sales, and propertv taxes. 

Assessed Value & Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Years. 6 62 
Direct & Overlapping Property Taxes-Governments, Last Ten Years  7 63 
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current & Nine Years Ago  8 64 
Property Tax Levies & Collections, Last Ten Years  9 65 

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic indicatois to 
help the reader undemand the envimninent within which the government 's financial activities take place. 

Demographic Economic Statistics, Last Ten Years  10 66 
Principal Employers, Current Year Nine Years Ago  11 67 

Full-Time him% alent Employees by Function, Last Ten Years  12 68 

Operating Indicators by Function, Last Ten Years  13 69 
Capital Assets by Function, Last Ten Years  14 70 
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Table I 

LIVINIATON PARISH ASSESSOR 

NET POSITON BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

IITNAGENTED1 

       

Year &mime Deeeinher 3i. 

     

2023 2022 

 

202 I 

 

2ft2k) 2019 

 

201* 

 

2017 2016 2015 

 

2614 

Governmental Activities 

               

Net Ian estment Cmntal Assets. Net of ReLate.i Debt $ 1,029372 $ .1*(O41 1 MI.:Ice] 5 106.118 4: 1421O2 b 1.54,1.193 5 

 

S -426 "1.1" b -13!.31X 5 553.7'3" 

Rest] iL 

               

Unrestricted il.A99.5601 ("56,6An) 

   

45- 7 449's (1.).i5,156) 

 

.0,4.01" 

 

(267 6161 

 

i) 

 

2.- 'c 

Total Govenunental me. Net Position S (670,3ittli S (363.A.:9) b ic4:1.121. $ 

 

$ r,h92,344) b 1.421.2I0 $ 

 

,.21'1.112) 

 

$ 

 

Business-type Activities N/A N/A N A N A NIA N A N A N A N .A N A 

Net lin estment tit Cmntal Assets. Net of ReLate.l Debt 

Rest] ktol 

I:Iwo:bided 

Total Business-rype Activnies Net Positeon 

Primary Government 

Net lickestment w Cmntal Assets. Net of Relate.l Deht 

Rest] 

Unrestricted 

$ 1.029.172 $ 

i1.6?9.360] 

.046.941 S 10i.:446 S 106.118 S 1421)12 S 1.54,1.193 5 -1(3.69" S 426 787 S 43!.315 S 553.7.$' 

("56,6.;6) (6-14.4- 7) (5'7 4441 (1.035.156) .364.01" (207 tilln (4-14.1, (- 19..520) - 22.755 

Total Primsty Government )tiet Posinun S (470,.‘a8] S (.]3..649] S S I.42I.21() 5 17g.287 S t215.312, S (21O.60:1 S 1.276.492 
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Table 2 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

CHANGES LN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN YEARS 

t ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

Expenses 

601 ernmenlal Activities 

      

Y.:Jr Ell•k11.2 11,ceffii)er .z I 

      

2, 122 

 

2, 121 202, ) 

 

201., 

  

2, 11 

 

1 6 

 

2,)15, 2014 

               

General Govenunetu I, 7 OKI 511 5 szo 

 

91' 23.P b 51.(PI 

 

5.025.8:2 S .7 2(.5 ,3i.7 

 

1 i.l.l 1 S 53,12,453 s 5 142 645 $ 4.)1 1.905 

Total GL.Nernmenthi Ines Expenses 

 

s 

 

91-  2:,, oni 

 

5.025.'6;2 2.205 ,,:52 

 

c,•I 11. 

 

ci117.1 

 

5 112 1.0- 1.005 

Plograin Revenues 

               

Govenunental Actn 

               

Geneisl Gcn ernment 

               

Charges lor Sets ices lc. 9sc. It. 933 

 

15 553 13.796 

 

12.667 19.429 

 

LA 445 

 

4...00 

 

12 529 12.33 l 

Operatang Chants MO 429.(19" 6141.086 

 

566.939 '1)1.390 

 

56(1.1 11 461.84)) 

 

4- 6 538 

 

701.711 

 

495.152 

 

Total Governmental A...tavines Program Revenues 940.034 612.019 

 

532.192 '32.156 

    

492.933 

 

701.711 

 

508.281 12,331 

Total Net (Expense) Revenue t6.1413,43131 t 6,3 56.811) 

 

4 .334.44") (4.4(1):.8'2) 

 

14.512,454. (1,124.'64) 

 

(4.063.136) 

 

(d..306.142) 

 

4.634.364 14 959 1"4; 

  

••••••••••••mr 

             

Geueral Revenues 

               

Ciosemmental Activities 

               

Ad Valorem TAX 5 626 199 5 313 "50 

 

5 lin 5.17 4.696.226 

 

4.166.321 4.4873.51 

 

4 251.2Su 

 

4 212 431 

 

4 131 668 3.95i.21 I 

Revenue Sharma 95.852 43.151 

 

i i - 1134 12(.hoo 

 

127.2x7 1121 .'31 

 

126.423 

 

I I9.38.1 

 

122.404 120,143 

Intelest Inc.one 'l 691 4768 

 

493 15.tioo 

 

16.465 7.615 

 

14 222 

 

1 HO 

 

it 040 27.9;4 

Other Intel cov enunerilal Revenue $5.429 .54,66- 

 

33.930 35.651 

 

36.411 3,O55 

 

29.91.18 

 

x.O3,  

 

25.814 26 1O1 

Odle) Revenue 9411 6 187 

 

• P 341 16.2).14 

 

13.741 88 

 

2 01/2 

 

5.234 

 

4t. 9.036 

Capital TiolltIer III (0010 IO LIVIIIIgsICNI ParMil ( •ouncil - 

  

- 

  

(2,9145,371; - 

 

- 

 

- 

   

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 

 

-.. 94., 

    

(2 —.9t9i) .c.aso 

   

28.A37 

  

19.485 

Total General Resenues 5 533 1 11 5 530 263 

 

5 262 656 4.889.866 

 

1.695.900 4.659.11S 

 

4 .1s.u.,35 

 

4 3"4 832 

 

4 294 026 4.159.244 

Total Clcuige in Net Poonon $ 4. ;06 $ 1"., 452 S t 791) $ -1213.14 1 (2,31 ;.5541 i 2.', 34,554 S 1,S5 o90 

 

(.8 (),•0 s (34(1341,•.) 

 



Table 3 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(MODIFIED ACCRI1AL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Gruel al Fund 
Nonspendabk 

Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 
Total General Fund 

All Olbei Governmental Funds 

Nouspendalile 

Resti ic led 

Committed 
Assigned 

Unassumed 

Tool All (Abel Governmental Fuuds 

Total All Funds 

     

Year Eliding Deceinbel 31, 

   

20'3 2022 2021 2o20 2019 2018 2017 2i)1ti 2015 2014 

S 

8.223 306 

S 

- 

8 057.722 

S 

5 7 37 .224 

S 

- 

4.118 (177 

S 

4.622 205 

S 

- 

6 1 72.62 7 

S 

6.034.024 

$ 

- 

4.603 657 

S 

4 S17.9(13 

S 

366.500 

3.956.47' 
S 8,223.3(46 S S'.057.722 S 5.737 224 S 4 11 g.471-7 $ 4.6'22.205 S 6.177 627 S 63)344124 $ 4.603,6c 7 S . 4 A• 17 .902i S 4.323.037 

         

S 

         

$ N.22 , , 06 05- - 22 '-, - ..•; - .22-1 i a.l1 S 4 622 205 ti h 1 -2.62 - 024 S 4 6, i 4 42..; 



Table 4 
LIVINGSTON PARISH AsSEsSOR 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL M.:DS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNT ING I 
(UNAUDITED, 

        

Yeaf Emlinq Decembei 3 I 

    

2, 23 

 

2 ,332 

 

2021 2020 

 

2019 a15 20 201. 

 

2, 15 2011 

Revenues 

              

Ad ValDrcni 5.6-11.030 S 6 958 741 S 5 762 S 3.1.31.574 S 4 105 580 S 4.446.005 S 4.443.242 S 3.636.979 S 4 l.4 1 668 S 3.9i61•85 
Intergovenuitenial 

              

State Res enue Shanng 95.852 

 

93 751 

 

117.085 128.600 

 

135.722 127.531 126.423 119.380 

 

122.404 12.i."43 
Fees Charitett to Oilier Gosenunents 36 429 

 

$5.667 

 

33.93/I 35.0' 

 

^9.9S7 30.685 404'91, uo 

 

2X.874 26.1O1 
State Crt ants 272.1I4 

             

("hat ges for Secs Wes 10 98' 

 

10.9.43 

 

15.8'3 13.-96 

 

12.667 19.429 26.991 4.40(r 

 

12.'20 12...;.,I 
interest "1.691 

 

• P 70.ac! 

 

403 13.a awl 

 

14 465 "1311 14.222 LW; 

 

11 040 26,261 

Other • /-10 

 

6.1"Sr; 

 

..4 ;41 21.2 l i 

 

13.-41 riil 2.,)92 

  

46 3.: 4 ,11 

Total Revent les 0.131.1l 7 

 

7  115 246 

 

4.43 .3.346.940 

 

,I4157 4.031.551 4.663.77,6 

  

4 306 555 4.176.542 

Expenditures 

              

General Government: 

              

Sa lanes 2.322.404 

 

2 148 7 I 9' 

 

1.930.4)15 1 780 704 

 

1.700.tit3 1.679.923 l 730 536 11.62.247 

 

1.87'5.156 1.830.817 
Benefits 1 371 393 

 

1.524.198 

 

1..475.264 1.160.503 

 

1.100.41.4 900.619 - 79.2.'3 1,633.416 

 

1.064. l g I 934.91D 
Pa:noll Taxes 4".500 

 

42 035 

 

• 4 706 34.7'6 

 

35 311 31;188 .47.754 41.19% 

 

44 760 42:102 
Insuisme 41,01 

 

34.37' 

 

7-...t in 67.43: 

 

62.183 K., I 54 CS.S23 43.989 

 

.47.341 K4,275 

Other Operating 95.699 

 

li' 158 

 

81 9- 3 21'.706 

 

/30 613 139.435 02.810 121.0201 

 

105 546 147.213 
Prntession.il Fees '19,176 

 

332.00' 

 

5 ll.64X 390.439 

 

tici.s9ii 31'.250 .4'2.009 579.650 

 

40,474 682.201 
Repaus and Maintenance 26.062 

 

22 375 

 

46.632 l'./.:00 

 

-18.7-15 19.412 26.-102 19.917 

 

20.538 21.657 
Supplies la.7 634 

 

153.0" 

 

113.622 49.095 

 

9X.92X 85.727 isN.1 l 7 176.951 

 

143.'74 164.568 
Tax Collector Expense 52.819 

 

45 3S6 

 

44.960 43 445 

 

2,010 2.308 1 451 38.389 

 

3'.9"4 3..-109 
Tn.% el and It /lining 146 77' 

 

78,6'4 

 

2S.470 44.409 

 

35.05 .O.62I 47.4.'2 28.984 

 

"S.244 62.390 
Uiilities 45.639 

 

-Isi 46., 

 

36 460 30.860 

 

3' 928 2o. Iiio 18.695 2o.9S3 

 

22 150 3o.938 
Caprial Otitla!,s 'o5,36.4 

 

356.002 

 

113.626 4.000 

 

1.91'.0 32 1,226,396 

 

70.287 

 

16.626 d:',962 
Intel got einmental Transfer 

          

- 

  

- 
Tot.il Expenditures 5,965,533 

 

4,802,711 

 

4. I2ii.21,6 3.F,'I.069 

 

4.873.971 4.498.198 3.233.41I 4.038.992 

 

3.811.68X 4.rt75.so' 

Excess (Deficient,. of Resent], over Expenditures 165 5134 

 

2.222.53' 

 

1.619.147 1'04.1291 

 

tl.'".,:31-12 132.653 1.430.367 t214.2461 

 

494.567 100.737 

Other Financing Sou. ces (Uses) 

Salc of F tre.1 Assets 

  

9' 93 

     

S.9Sta 

    

I.S9n 

Total Other Financing Souices I Uses) 

        

5.9So 

    

3 590 

Net Change in Fund Balances 1.,  541 'S 

 

S 

 

.' ,14.12", 

 

\ 1.‘5,,.-122 

  

1214:46) S 

  

Dein Serrire as 11 Perceninge of Noneapital Expenditures N A 

 

N A 

 

N A N A 

   

N A N A 

 

NA 

 



Table 5 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF AMOUNTING) 

t UNAUD(TED1 

Year Ending December 31. 

Tax Revenues b) Sourer: 

AcIValorein Tax 

Total Tax Revenues 

2023 2022 

 

zu2I 2020 2m9 201S 2017 2016 '015 21114 

S 5.641.030 S 6.t1i8.74I S 

S 

5, 3.1315'4 S 4.I0c.58ri S 4.446.0n5 S 4.443.242 S 3.636.979 $ 4.131.663 S 3.956.w35 

S 5.A41.0.34i S 6.9514.741 S 1131 5 - 4 i 4.1o5.0 S 4.446.005 S 4.443.2-12 S 3.636 9-4,a S -4131.66F S 3.'1c6.0.-5 



Table 6 
LIVINGsTON PARLSH ASSESSOR 

ASSESSED vALUE AND TIMTED ACTUAL VALT.-E OF T.AXABLE PROPERTY:, 
LAST TEN YEAR,. 

UNAULNI ED 

Real Estate Asse,sed V.4ie 

    

Yrai Emtuu: D,...cinl•cl 3 I. 

   

2n1'? 

 

In211 202n 2'019 s 2.4)1 -  2nlo 21115 2014 

S 614).276.402 t 050..44.942 1 631 659.3'0 1 (46.360.6ln I. 560.- 0' 622 I ‘02.2.46.2.(2 S ‘41 .967 .t.7‘ S C.L1.226.02C S 521.759.240 1 569.481920 
CounnerciM and (Abet Pt...petty Agse,s6.1 Value 222.320 425 .:tr.605 020 202.'7(O40 293 446.65u 100.324.15u 18u 370 560 Itib 277 560 I56.730 . 70 160.322 640 150.644 320 
Puhlic Serace Ag.eised Value 50.015 450 50.654 500 42.'75.676 46 117.66u J. . 7i 3190 all 4 75 A0 45 642 650 42.'51 220 41.0.4 v20 44133 050 

T.•tal Assessed Value ÿltn.h1U,yr: 0 0.145 ?O.: Z.4b0.204.11,20 667 565.25u 614 702.262 754 657092 754. ISE 065 7,3.- ris i 1 i 724.1117.400 7l..I.I50.200 

Leas Hothesteld Exemption Value 271.923.765 259 721.791 256.512.520 240.O6 .171 2-13.436. 447 244.710.657 246.227.44" 239.268.703 234,.:113.264 2.a.433.62i 

1-.4.d Tazahlr Assmed ‘ alue C,E6.635.612 64)3.:3 51'1 A31691,560 6l8.5ut.E70 571 266.515 5 mio2n.-o5 513 th+0 632 494.419 4112 3S47.- J3 336 472.'25.665 

T.cal Estuuated Actual Value .4. 525.1114.98" 2.1193.71'.6 at 7 7 9u3.494.0l.. 7 724.736.64u 6.65:5 713.420 0.694 569.253 0.7r loso 750 6.55/LI.," 567 6 454.155 680 6 .:62.M0A67 

Total Dtre...i T.u: Rate E .12 $ 32 $.22 7.66 E 52 2 52 $ 52 A.52 S.52 6 52 

Rata., ut Total Assessed Value 6. Total II 244. 11 20A. II :50.0 11 24*.. 11 EFA., II 220 4 II 23, :. III90o l 1 22•c• 11 t).'e) 
Estanuied Actual Value 

          

S.arce ingsion Parish Asses..es Office Lowman, Tax C..rtuursical P.eporis 

(.2 



Table 7 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPNG PROPERTY TAX RATES 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

      

Veal Deceinhei 31. 

    

10'13 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 21115 2014 

Livingston Parish Assessor's Office Direct Rales: 

          

Assessment 8 320 8.320 8.220 7.660 k 520 8.520 8.510 8.52U 8.520 8 5 70 

Overlapping C:orernments' Rates: 

          

Law Enforcement 21 66 21.66 21.66 21.66 21 66 21.66 21.66 21.66 21 66 21 66 
Parish Government 24 730 25.570 31 5Iu 22.460 22 750 '2 750 '2.250 21.750 22.820 24 73u 

School Distlict 69 470 71.040 71 040 71.040 177 790 81 790 87.790 85.790 104.760 110 610 
Cities Towns. and Villages 6 973 11.973 l 1 973 9.743 9 884 9 638 9 635 9 635 9.585 9 855 
Fire Districts 114 0q0 115.810 100 810 100.600 98 890 98 730 98.760 98.420 98.590 93 420 
Lighting Districts 0 000 0.0O 0.000 0.0tr0 0 000 0.000 0 0O 0 tr00 0.000 0 00ti 
Reereatunial Distnets 29 130 29.130 29.130 29.130 30 000 30.100 44.620 44.870 45.350 46 000 
Other Districts 0 000 0.000 0.000 4.970 i 160 5.160 5 160 5 160 5.170 5 170 

Tc.tal Direct and Orrilapping Rates 274 37 283.511 27-L34 267.26 374.65 278.35 298.40 295.81 317 16 320.10 

Source: Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 
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Table 8 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGC) 
(UNAUDITED) 

2023 2014 

Taxpayer 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percentage 
of Total 
Assessed 

Value 

 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percentage 
of Total 
Assessed 

Value 

Dixie Electric Membership c 17,636,11(1 1 1.84% $ * * * 

Entergy Louisiana, LLC 13.753,290 -) 1.43% 

 

* * * 

Ferrara Fire Apparatus 11,793,360 3 1.13% 

 

* * * 

Wal-Mart Louisiana, LLC' 6,553,260 4 (1.68% 

 

* * * 

Hancock Whitney 4.699,160 5 0 49% 

 

* * * 

First Guaranty Bank 3.610,520 6 0 38% 

 

* * * 

Transcontinental Gas Pipdine 3.103,940 7 0 32% 

 

* 

 

* 

Bellsouth Telecommunications, LLC 3.094,240 8 0.3")% 

    

CB&I Walker LA, LLC 2.960,980 9 0.31% 

    

Creekstone Juban I, LLC 2.912,06(1 10 0.30% 

   

* 

 

S 70.116,920 

 

7.01% ti 

   

* Information not available 

       

Source: LivinL,ston Parish Assessor's Office 
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Tahle 9 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

PRrNCIPAL PROPERTY TAXTAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

    Collected within the Ye..u-  of  
Amount Percentage of 

Collected Levy 

 Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years 

 otal Collections to Date 
Year Ended 

December 31  

Total Tax Levy 
for Year    

Amount Percentage of 
Collected Levy 

             
'1013 5,712,817 $ 631,142 1113i, 4,818,130 $ 5,449,272 95 39% 
1017 5,454,273 

 

554.519 

 

4,732,037 5,286,566 96 93% 

2021 5,237,475 

   

4,922,361 4.922,361 93 98% 
/010 4,740,082 

 

23.191 0% 4,326M41 4.349.232 91.7.51!0 
2019 4,867,198 

 

351.1'8 7% 4,393,555 4.744,783 97.48% 
/018 4,600,117 

  

0% 4A85,919 4.485,919 97.52% 

2017 4,378,951 

 

484,536 11% 3,734,336 4.218,872 96.34°-;. 

2016 4,212,460 

  

0% 4,111,025 4.111,025 97.59qi. 
2015 4,172,491 

 

541,145 13% 3,587,837 4.128,982 98.96% 

2014 4,027,622 

 

394,343 10% 3,580,938 3.975.281 98.70% 

Source: Livingston Parish Assessor's Office 
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Table 10 
LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 
(UNAUDITED) 

Year Population ( I ) 
Median 
Age {11 

Per Capita 
Personal 

Income (1) 

Total 
Personal 

Income ( 11 

Edueation Level 
in Years of Formal 

Schooling (2) 

Public 
School 

Enrollment (2) 

Total 
Unemployment 

Rate (31 

,0/3 148.425 * * 

 

* 

 

27,731 3.1% 
2022 145,830 * * * * 

 

26,153 7.8% 
2021 143,579 36.5 75,682 7,124,419,00(1 

 

12.90 26,150 2.5% 
2020 142.184 36.8 67,365 6.557.263,000 

 

12.93 25,520 4.9% 
2019 140.789 36.6 42,217 5.943.620,000 

 

12.92 25,712 4.1% 
2018 139.567 36.3 40,658 5.674.450,000 

 

12.93 '5,855 4.1% 
2017 138,228 35.9 38,493 5,320,879,000 

 

12.90 25,482 4.2% 
2016 140,080 35.6 37,509 5,254,329,000 

 

1/.87 25,418 5.1% 
2015 137,5(4 35.3 38,554 5,303,613,000 

 

1/.88 25,994 5.1% 
2014 135.579 35.0 37.370 5.059.821,000 

 

12.88 "5,997 5.5% 

Notes: * Information not available. 

Sources: (1) U S. Census Bureau, Bureau of Economic Analysis 
(2) Annual School Census of Department of Education 
(3) Bureau of Labor Statistics 
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Table 11 
LIVINGSTON PARISI4 ASSESSOR 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31. 2023 
(UNAUDITED) 

Deceinher 31, 2023  December 31, 2014    
Percentace ot Percentage of 

Number Total Livingston Number Total Livingston 
of Parish of Parish 

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

3,077 1 9.881.0 * * * 

l.lO0 1 3.53% * * * 

500 1 (.61% * * * 

400 4 1.289•;) * * * 

365 5 l.17% * * * 
271 6 0.87% * * * 

212 7 0.68% * * * 
200 8 0.64% * * * 

200 9 0.64% * * * 

193 10 0.62% * * 
6,518 10.91% 

Employer 

Livingston Pansh Public Schools 

Walmart Supercenter 
Jiffy Mart 

Bass Pro Shops 
Livingston Parish Sheriffs Office 
Keller Wilhams Realty Premier 
McDonalds 
CEI 
AII Star Automotive Group 

Ferrara Fire Apparatus 
Total - 10 Largest Employers 

Notes: * Information not available 

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Livingston Economic Development Council 
Livingston Parish School Board 
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Table 12 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

     

Year Ending Decembei 31. 

   

2023 

 

2022 2021 20'0 2019 

 

2018 2017 2016 '015 

 

Full-Time Positions 

Assessment District: 

           

Adnumsnatton S 8 8 8 8 

 

7 

    

Transfer , Flout Counter 6 6 X 7 7 

 

8 ti 9 

 

10 
Residential 5 5 7 7 8 

   

If) 

 

10 
Counneicial 4 4 5 5 4 

 

4 

    

Mapping 

           

Total Full-Time Positions 25 23 2X 27 

  

2 7 2f) 

 

31 33 

Part-Time Positions 

t 6 6 

    

7 

  

lo 12 

Total Part-Time Positions 

 

6 

 

5 9 

    

16 12 

Total 31 

 

35 3' 36 

 

34 7,1 48 47 45 

      

MID 

     

Source Livingston Parish Assessor's (:1ffice 

           



Table 13 
LIVINGsOTN PARISH ASSESSOR 

upE1CATIN6 D1CATAORS BY FUNCTM1 
LkST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED', 

      

Year Endinu December 31. 

   

2023 2022 2021 2020 

 

2011, 2018 201" 2016 260 2014 
Function: 

           

Asse,nteut Do.nict 

           

T.oal Assessed Valuattons $ 953.619.39" S 909 245 ;62 S g0.21.4 020 $ f;67.,X>5.250 1 814.702.862 S 734.637.092 S 7s4 18s 035 S 73: 708 115 S 724 01' 400 701.159.290 
Total Taxable Valuation,. 666.635:;12 S 649.52 S7I S 642.691.5011 S 61 X.306.379 I. 57 1.266.c l S 5:9.920.4:5 $ 5I3.960.6:3 S 494.410.412 1 410.733.i38 to 472,725.645 

Total Taxei Assesied s 107.737.982 S 103 tm7s47 S 95 014 560 S 91.750.945 1 V.957.028 S 85.250.435 S 09 I 052 S 80 13: 491 S 80.745.676 S 83.726.565 

Total TaepayeeN 64.985 64 416 

 

61 .•,49 

 

59.486 57.447 SAIII 55 733 54.743 54.037 
Total Parcel.: 69 242 68.604 bs.831. 66.31x 

 

65 364 64.171 63.056 62.651 61.264 6(037 

Sumo Lartniston Palish Asse.sot's Office 
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Table 14 

LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

CAPITAL ASSErs BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets: 

Capital Asset.. Not Being Deprecidied: 

    

Year Decemhei 31. 

   

2023 

 

:021 2i Cu 201c. 201s 

 

2010 2015 2014 

          

Construition in Prouress $ 422.925 $ 132 4i.:S 

  

S I Inl."'12 S 

   

Total Capital Aiset, Not Being Depeciated 

 

132.48K 

   

I.101.74: 

    

Capital Assets Beim: Depreciated 

Buikling4 and Impioveitients 339.8K8 

    

c17,641 517.641 517.641 488.952 4140.3q2 

\Mut les 130.775 80.778 rs.7K4 240,155 240,155 291,77g 203.195 203.19K '39.15' 239.152 

Machniery ancl Equipment 305360 290 775 65 261 68 26 l 78 759 66 123 66.12E 6o 128 66 128 64.108 

Computris 370.9KE 360.526 360,526 360.5 26 34f, .02S.: 346,02N 346.025 346.02H 339.330 339.330 

Total Capital Aiset, Being Depret lilted: 1.147.011 73'.079 7fr,571 668.945 664,945 1.221,575 1.132.995 1.132.995 1.133.562 1,122.942 

Less .Accumulaied Depreciation for 

Buikling4 and Impiovements 5.197 

  

- 

 

213.864 185.721 157.i75 130.611 108.243 

\Mut les 73.218 47.655 198.121 162.739 130.375 145.063 162.724 143.076 166.406 128.496 

Machinery ancl Equipment 103.107 74 324 55 367 50 786 46 241 65 421 65.017 63 458 61 564 58.460 

Compuicis 359,242 355.617 15',7'7 349.153 345,014 34'.776 ;41.436 340.096 339.163 274.006 

Total Accunnildted Depreciation 540,76-1 477.606 606.215 562.825 q12.133 767.124 7s4.895 704.20K 697.744 569.205 

Total Capital Aiset, Being Deprct iated. Net 606.24 7 254.-173 101.356 106.117 l-12.512 45-415, 1 ?'S.v97 428.787 435.81K 553.73" 

Total Govcrtimental Activities Capital Assets. Nct $ 1.029.172 $ 386 961 S 101.356 S 106.117 S 142.S12 S I 556.193 S 37 /%097 S 428 7E7 S -135 818 S 553."37 

S.auee: Livingston Pansh Assessors O11Iie 

          

T(c 



 

HANNIS T. 
BOURGEOIS 
CPAs + BUSINESS ADVISORS 

1254 DEL ESTES AVE., SUITE 1101 

DENHAM SPRINGS, LA 70726 

TEL. 225.928.4770 l WWW.HTBCPA.COM 

PROUDLY SERVING LOUISIANA SINCE 1924 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Jeffrey G. Taylor, CLA 
Livingston Parish Assessor 
Livingston, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, and each 
major fund of the Livingston Parish Assessor, Livingston, Louisiana, as component unit of Livingston Parish 
Council and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Livingston Parish Assessor's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated June 28, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Livingston Parish 
Assessor's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Livingston Parish Assessor's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Livingston Parish Assessor's internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the lirnited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Livingston Parish Assessor's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Respectfully submitted, 

)-kar,inmAn ), 'LLO 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
June 28, 2024 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

SCHEUDLE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results  

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report ssued. Umnodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness identified' Yes X No 

• Significant deficiencies denufied? Yes X None 

 

Reported 

   

• Noncompliance material to tinmtcial statements noted? Yes X No 

B. Finding - Internal Control Over Finaucial Reporting 

None. 

Findings - Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

SCHEUDLE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

A. Finding - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

B. Findings - Compliance and Other Nlatters 

None. 

74 



LIVINGSTON PARISH ASSESSOR 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

DECEMBER 31. 2023 



 

HANNIS T. 
BOURGEOIS 
CPAs + BUSINESS ADVISORS 

1254 DEL ESTES AVE., SUITE 1101 

DENHAM SPRINGS, LA 70726 

TEL. 225.928.4770 I WWW.HTBCPA.COM 

PROUDLY SERVING LOUISIANA SINCE 1924 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures  

To the Honorable Jeffrey G. Taylor, CLA 
Livingston Parish Assessor 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
And the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) 
for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 30, 2023. The Livingston Parish Assessor 
(Assessor) management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Assessor has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified 
in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 30, 2023. Additionally, LLA 
has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This 
report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items 
of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users 
are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. — No exceptions. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders, (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. — No exceptions. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. — No exceptions. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). - No exceptions. 
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et Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for ernployee 
rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. — No exceptions. 

t) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts. (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review. (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. — No exceptions. 

g) Travel and Expense Reimbursement. including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense. (3) documentation requirements. and (4) required approvers. - No 
exceptions. 

h) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable). including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled. (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g.. determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). — No exceptions. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as detined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-
1121. (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place. (3) system to monitor possible 
ethics violations. and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. - No 
exceptions. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. - No exceptions. 

1) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identitication of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network. (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored. (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches!updates. and (6) identification of personnel, processes. and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. — No exceptions. 

1) Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42:342-344 requirernents ibr (1) agency 
responsihilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. — No 
exceptions. 

Board or Finance Committee 

1 . Obtain and inspect the boardifinance committee minutes for the fiscal period. as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter. bylaws. or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period. and: 

Note: The Assessor is a single elected ofticial. These procedures are not applicable. 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee rnet with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter. bylaws, or other equivalent docurnent. 
- Not applicable. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual cornparisons on the general fund. quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. — Not applicable. 



c ) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal 
period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in 
the general fund. — Not applicable. 

d) Observe whether the board/finance cornmittee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit tinding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until 
the findings are considered fully resolved. — Not applicable. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts tor the fiscal period from manaeement and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged), - No exceptions. 

b) Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers. or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
within 1 month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g.. initialed and dated or 
electronically logged). and - No exceptions. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date. if applicable. - No 
exceptions. 

Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cashichecksimoney orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). — No exceptions. 

5. For each deposit site selected, ohtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), ohtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location. and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that• 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers.fregisters: - No exceptions. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing!making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g.. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit: - No exceptions. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers. unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and - No exceptions. 

d) The employeets) responsihle for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger andlor 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. — No exceptions. 
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6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. - No exceptions. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates tbr each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure 43 (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made On the same day). 
Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting 

the deposit dates Pr testing, such as a cash collection log. daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. 
(_lbtain supportine documentation for each of the 1(1 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. - No exceptions. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports. and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. - No exceptions. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. - No exceptions. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). — No exceptions. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. — No exceptions. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments. travel reimbursements, and petty 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 
— No exceptions. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above. obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures. inquire of employees about 
their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request. approving a purchase, and 
placing an order!making the purchase: — No exceptions. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors, — No 
exceptions. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohihited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor tiles; — 
No exceptions. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or eives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments: and - No 
exceptions. 

e) C)nly employeesiofficials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of ftmds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer. or some other electronic means. - No exceptions. 
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10. For each location selected under 48 above. obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 dishursetnents for each location. obtain supporting 
docutnentation for each transaction. and: — No exceptions. 

a) Observe whether the dishursement. whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related 
original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the 
invoice were received by the entity. — No exceptions. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initialidate, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under 49. as applicable. — No exceptions. 

11. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements tf 
less than 5) and ohserve that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g.. sign checks) per the entity's policy. and (b) approved by the 
required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were 
made from rhe main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an 
alternative month and/or account for testing that does includc electronic disbursements. — No 
exceptions. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards 

12. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, hank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period. including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. — 
No exceptions. 

13. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select One monthly statement or comhined statement 
for each card (for a debit card. randomly select one monthly bank statement). obtain supporting 
docutnentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., miginal receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically 
approved). by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such 
approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the tnayor of a 
Lawrason Act municipality. should not be reported); and - No exceptions. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late lees were not assessed on the selected statements. — No 
exceptions. 

14. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #13 above. excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
inspection). For each transaction. observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the businessipublic purpose, 
and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing 
receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether manaeement 
had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is 
subject to increased scrutiny. — No exceptions. 
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Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov); — No exceptions. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; — No exceptions. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#1h); and — No exceptions. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person receiving reimbursement. — No exceptions. 

Contracts 

16. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; — No exceptions. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); — No exceptions. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented); and — No exceptions. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. — No exceptions. 

Payroll and Personnel 

17.Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. — No exceptions. 

18.Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under #17 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 
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a) Observe all selected employees or official documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory); — No exceptions. 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials, — No exceptions. 

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity"5, cumulative 
leave records; and — No exceptions. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salaryipay rate found 
within the personnel file. — No exceptions. 

19.Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee or officials' cumulative leave records, agee the pay rates to the employee or officials' 
authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy. — No exceptions. 

20. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g.. payroll taxes. retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
been filed, by required deadlines. - No exceptions. 

Ethics 

21. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure Payroll and Personnel procedure 
417 obtain ethics documentation from management. and: 

a) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170: and - No exceptions. 

b) Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. — There were no changes to the Assessor's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

22. Inquire andior observe whether the aeency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42.1170. — No exceptions. 

Debt Service 

23. Obtain a listing of bonasinotes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII. Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. — 
There was no debt issued during current fiscal period. Obtained management's representation 
of this. 

24. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the Iisting is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by deht covenants (includine contingency funds. short-lived 
asset funds. or other funds required by the debt covenants). - There was no debt outstanding dming 
the fiscal period. Obtained management's representation of this. 



Fraud Notice 

25. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of puhlic funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and ohserve that the entity reported the tnisappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 24. 523. — There were no misappropriations of public funds or of assets noted during the 
fiscal period. Obtained management's representation of this. 

26. Observe the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud. waste, or ahuse of public funds — No exceptions. 

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

27. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report - We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docutnentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for hacking up critical 
data) and observe evidence that such backtip (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored 
on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. — We performed the 
procedure and discussed the results with management. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has testediverified that its 
backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testine/verifying backup restoration) and ohserve evidence that the test/verification 
was successfully perfortned within the past 3 months. - We performed the procedure and 
discussed the results with management. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations. and 
inanagement's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. - We performed the procedure and discussed the results 
with management. 

28. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated etnployees if less than 5) using the list of 
ternunated employees obtained in procedure #19. Ohserve evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. — No exceptions. 

29. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 417, obtain 
cyhersecurity training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates that the following employeesiofficials with access to the agency's information 
technology assets have completed cyhersecurity training as required hy R.S. 42:126725. The 
requirements are as follows• 

a) Hired before June 9. 2020 - completed the training: and 
b) Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - coinpleted the training within 30 days of initial service or 

employment. 

No exceptions. 
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

30. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #17, obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe the documentation 
demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. — No exceptions. 

31. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). — No 
exceptions. 

32. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 
42:344: ). 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions 

We were engaged by the Assessor to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Assessor and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, 
this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Respectfully submitted, 

c,,, Aro;,„ 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
June 28, 2024 
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